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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET ("GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities fraded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the board of directors of Aptus Holdings Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, fo the best of their
knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are
fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE&HRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board”) of Aptus
“Aptus”),
present the annual report and financial results of the

Holdings Limited (the "Company” or | hereby
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (the “Financial
Year”).

OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR

During the Financial Year, the Company disposed the
natural gas joint ventures ("Disposal Transaction”) for
a total consideration of approximately RMB355,144,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$403,205,000) and
terminated the profit sharing rights with respect to the Xin
Jiang Oilfield (“Termination of Profit Sharing Rights”) for
an amount of approximately RMB39,856,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$45,270,000). The proceeds from
the Disposal Transaction were used to redeem the
convertible bonds issued by the Company on 22
November 2006.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE&HRE

Other than the above-mentioned Disposal Transaction,
the Group’s cashflow was further improved by raising
fund of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$77.6 million through share placement and issue
of subscription shares. Part of of the new share
placement proceeds was for the acquisition of Casdon
Management Limited (*Casdon”). On 27 May 2010,
Aptus completed the acquisition of Casdon for a
total consideration of HK$1.085 billion. Casdon and its
subsidiaries are engaged in operating and managing its
owned properties that provides and sells approximately
69,000 boxes for the storage of deceased cremated
ashes and other ancestral properties and the related
businesses and services in Hong Kong.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The edible oil frading business suffered fough setbacks
as a result of the slow recovery of the global market.
The management of Aptus has been very cautious
over the past year when making trades to ensure ifs
profitableness.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE&HRE

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

After having strengthened Aptus’ financial position via
the above-mentioned disposals of its natural gas related
assets, the Directors have been looking for a number
of new business opportunities in order to enhance the
Group’s growth as well as Aptus shareholders’ returns.
The successful acquisition of Casdon on 27 May 2010
marked an important chapter in the development of
the Company, with a continuing round of opportunities
and challenges. Although there are no specific laws
and regulations in Hong Kong governing the operations
of private columbaria or the use of Casdon’s owned
buildings erected for the storage space of deceased
cremated ashes and other ancestral properties, legal
opinions by Hong Kong Senior Counsels indicated
that the Company’s owned buildings erected on Lots
Nos. 2044, 2046, 2051, 2052, 2059, 2061 and 2065 of
Demarcation District 104 in Ngau Tam Mei, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong, can lawfully be used for the
deposit and storage of deceased cremated ashes and
other ancestral properties under the Block Government
Lease of Demarcation District 104 and are permitted
under the Approved Ngau Tam Mei Outline Zoning
Plan on the ground that the provision of shrine as well
as operations and users related thereto are always
permitted within the land use zone of “Village Type
Development”. The Board believes that the prospects
of the newly acquired business of providing spaces
for storage of deceased cremated ashes and other
ancestral properties is positive given the growing
demand and shortage of supply in Hong Kong. Based on
the growing need, we are confident that the business will
provide solid and long-term confribution to the Group'’s

revenue.

Aptu‘s Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE&HRE

Apart from the provision of storage space business, the
Company further diversified its business through entering
into a collaboration agreement with B EZEH R KR HE
PR A &, a Taiwan-based company which is principally
engaged in the research, design, sale and manufacture
of paper-offering products for the ancestral deceased.
The management believes that innovative paper-offering
products for the ancestral deceased is another market
with exponential growth potential in Hong Kong.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to thank our investors,
customers, bankers, confractors, advisors, staffs and
business associates for their invaluable assistance and
significant contribution to the Group in the Financial
Year. We are determined to pursue growth in the future

and aim to bring in better returns for our shareholders.

Lam Wai Pong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 September 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

Turnover from edible oil and mineral material trading
business decreased by approximately 79% from
approximately HK$18.3 million for the year ended 30 June
2009 to approximately HK$3.8 million in the Financial Year
due to continuing unfavourable market conditions.

Gross Profit

The details of gross profit and gross profit margin of the
Group are as follows:

Aptus Holdings Limited
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In reaction to tough market conditions, the Group has
remained the low-price strategy for edible oil trading
business and resulted in low gross profit margin in the

Financial Year.

Discontinued Operations

During the Financial Year, the Company has completed
the Termination of Profit Sharing Rights and the disposals
of the 48.33% equity inferest in the Changde joint venture
and 33% equity interest in the Hunan joint venture
(together known as the "Natural Gas Joint Ventures”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The profit from disconfinued operations of approximately
HK$191 million for the Financial Year represented the
Group’s share of net loss of the Natural Gas Joint
Ventures of approximately HK$170,000 and gain on
the Disposal Transaction, net of tax, of approximately
HK$181.2 million and Termination of Profit Sharing Rights,
net of tax, of approximately HK$10 million.

Loss from discontfinued operations for the year ended 30
June 2009 of approximately HK$28.6 million represented
net result of the Group’s share of net profit of the Natural
Gas Joint Ventures of approximately HK$3.6 million, net
loss of profit sharing rights with respect to the Xin Jiang
QOilfield of approximately HK$412,000 and impairment loss
on goodwill of approximately HK$31.8 million.

Operating Costs

The Group’s operating costs, representing mainly of
administrative expenses, increased by approximately
HK$33.2 million from approximately HK$4.9 million for
the year ended 30 June 2009 to approximately HK$38.1
million in the Financial Year. The increase was mainly due
tfo the professional fees and audit fee of approximately
HK$18.9 million and approximately HK$2.3 million,
respectively, incurred as a result of the completion of the
Disposal Transaction, Termination of Profit Sharing Rights
and the acquisition of Casdon. The remaining increase
was due to bank charges of approximately HKS$4.6 million
for funds exchanging from Reminbi to Hong Kong dollars
in respect of the net proceeds of Disposal Transaction.

Finance Costs

The decrease in finance costs of approximately HKS12
million from approximately HK$37 million for the year
ended 30 June 2009 to approximately HK$25 million
in the Financial Year was due to full redemption of
convertible bonds issued on 22 November 2006 to
Evolution Master Fund Ltd. SPC, Segregated Portfolio M
in phases to reduce the outstanding principal thereby
reducing the finance cost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEERR D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2010, the Group held total assets
of approximately HK$1.1 billion (30 June 2009:
approximately HK$387.2 million), including cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$8.9 million (30 June
2009: approximately HK$2.0 million). The significant
increase in assets was mainly due to the recognition
of goodwill arising from the acquisition of Casdon of
approximately HK$904.6 million.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had total liabilities
of approximately HK$375.0 million (30 June 2009:
approximately HK$474.0 million) which includes
convertible bonds of approximately HK$252.7 million and
promissory notes of HK$87.2 million which were issued as
partial consideration for the acquisition of Casdon.

As at 30 June 2010. the gearing ratio, expressed as a
percentage of fotal debts over total assets was about
33.3% (30 June 2009: 78.3%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had no contingent
liabilities (30 June 2009: Nil).

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2010, the Group did not have any charge
on its assets. (As at 30 June 2009, 100% of the issued
share capital of Good United Management Limited
("GUM"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
was pledged in favour of the holder(s) of the convertible
bonds. GUM held 70% equity interests in CNPC Energy,
which owned the profit sharing rights. In addition,
bank borrowings of approximately HK$59.9 million were

secured by the gas network of the Hunan Joint Venture).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Financial Year the Company issued 18,670,000
shares based on share options granted in 2004 under the
share option scheme to eligible participants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 10 December 2009, the Company through share
placement, issued 160,000,000 new shares at the price
of HK$0.25 per share to independent third parties. On
16 December 2009, the Company issued 122,160,000
new shares at the price of HK$0.3172 per share to two
subscribers.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 20
November 2009 and the supplemental agreement dated
19 March 2010, HK$850 million convertible bonds due on
27 May 2016 were issued to Red Rabbit Capital Limited
as partial consideration for the acquisition of Casdon.
As at 30 June 2010, a total of 1,320,000,000 new shares
have been issued as a result of the conversion of HK$330
million convertible bonds.

The total number of issued shares of the Company was
enlarged to 3,383,671,428 shares as at 30 June 2010 (30
June 2009: 1,762,841,428 shares).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND ANY RELATED
HEDGES

No significant exchange risk is expected as the Group'’s
cash, borrowings, income and expenses are settled in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or United States dollars. The
Group did not perform any foreign currency hedging
activities during the year. Nevertheless, the Group
will from time fo time review and adjust the Group’s
investment and financing sfrategies based on the
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars
exchange rate movement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEERR D

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES
AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 30 June 2010, the Group employed 17 staffs
13 staffs
from continuing operations) by the Company and its

from continuing operations (30 June 2009:

subsidiaries. The aggregate staff costs and Director’s
remuneration in the Financial Year totalled approximately
HK$3.3 million from continuing operations (30 June
2009: approximately HK$2.1 million from continuing
operations). Remuneration is determined by reference
tfo market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employees. In addition to
salaries and provident fund contributions, the Group
also offers medical benefits and training programs.
Share options may be granted to employees based on
performance evaluation in order to provide incentives

and rewards.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group did not have
any significant investments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 24 April 2009, the Company entered info agreements
relating tfo the Disposal Transaction. The Disposal
Transaction and the Termination of Profit Sharing Rights
were approved by the shareholders in the extraordinary
general meeting held on 10 July 2009. The Disposal
Transaction and Termination of Profit Sharing Rights were
completed on 11 September 2009 and 17 November
2009, respectively. Details of the transactions are set out
in the joint circular of the Company and China Vanguard
Group Limited dated 24 June 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company, through Sea Marvel Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary, completed the acquisition of the entire
issued capital of Casdon at a consideration of HK$1.085
billion. The consideration was setftled in the following
manner: (i) HK$85 million was seftled in cash; (ii)
HK$850 million by the Company issuing the convertible
bonds; (iii) HK$20 million by the Company issuing the
secured promissory note; and (iv) HK$130 million by the
Company issuing the unsecured promissory note. Details
of the transactions are set out in the joint circular of the
Company and China Vanguard Group Limited dated 22
April 2010.

Other than aforementioned, there was no other material
acquisition and disposal which would have been
required to be disclosed under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM
Listing Rules™).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT ESERSHEEAE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Wai Pong ("Mr. Lam”), aged 54, was
appointed as an Executive Director on 8 January 2010
and re-designated as Chairman of the Board and the
remuneration committee with effect from 18 June 2010.
He is also director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Lam is responsible for the business development,
strategic planning and marketing for the Group. He holds
a Bachelor of Science (Engineering) from University of
London, United Kingdom. Mr. Lam is a Chartered Civil
Engineer, a member of the Institution of Civil Engineering
and a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
He has over 30 years of extensive experience in the civil
engineering fields. Mr. Lam has acted as an independent
non-executive director and member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of China Au
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as "Blu Spa
Holdings Limited”) (a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange) since August
2005.

Mr. CHAN Ting ("Mr. Chan”), aged 40, was appointed as
an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 27
August 2004. He is also the director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. He was awarded a degree in Economics
from Macquarie University in Australia in 1993. Mr. Chan
has over 17 years of solid experience in establishing and
managing companies in the PRC. He is an executive
director and chief executive officer of China Vanguard
Group Limited.

Mr. LAU Chi Kwong ("Mr. Lau”), aged 40, was appointed
as an Executive Director and Compliance Officer of
the Company on 11 June 2010. He is also the director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. He is responsible
for the overall business development and marketing
implementation of the Group. Mr. Lau is an associate
member of the Australion Instifute of Chartered Loss
Adjusters and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and
a senior associate member of the Australion and New
Zealand Institute of Insurance and Finance ("ANZIIF").
He is also a full member of the Institute of Management
Specialists. Mr. Lau holds a Diploma of Business (Loss
Adjusting) issued by the ANZIIF and a Higher Diploma
in Insurance Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT ESERSHEEAE

Mr. FUNG King Him Daniel (*"Mr. Fung”), aged 40, was
appointed as an Executive Director and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 27 August 2004. He
is also director of various subsidiaries of the Group. He
holds a bachelor degree from the University of Wisconsin
in the United States of America with double majors in
Mathematics and Computer Science. He previously
worked in Lehman Brothers Asia Limited, HSBC Asset
Management Limited and Platinum Securities Company
Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZOU Qi Jun (“Mr. Zou"), aged 74, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member each of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee on 9 September 2008. He
was born in Chongqging city of the PRC. He graduated
from Zhongshan Medical University in 1956. He has
been the President of the Second Associated Hospital
of Jinan University (Shenzhen City People’s Hospital),
director, medical professor and Chief Physician of the
Institute of Gerontology of Shenzhen City. He was a
special allowance expert of the State Council and a
distinguished expert in Shenzhen City. He has also served
as a guest expert reviewer of the Chinese Journal of
Medicine, the executive editor of the Chinese Journal
of Microcirculation, vice chairman of the Council
of Chinese Medical Association in the Guangdong
Province for Geriatrics, the chairman of the Council of
the Shenzhen Municipal Chinese Medical Association.
Mr. Zou is currently the vice president of the Shenzhen
Institute of Health Technology, Chief Health Education
Expert of Shenzhen City, health education adviser of the
Health Bureau of Shenzhen City.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT ESERSHEEAE

Mr. TO Yan Ming Edmond ("Mr. To"), aged 38, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director,
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 11 January
2006. Mr.
in Accounting from Curtin University of Technology in

To holds a bachelor degree in Commerce

Western Australia. He is a practicing accountant and
presently the director of Fortitude C.P.A. Limited, Edmond
To CPA Limited and Zhonglei (HK) CPA Company Limited.
He is a member of both the CPA Australia and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He worked
for one of the international accounting firms, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and has over 10 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, floatation and taxation matters.
Mr. To was appointed as an independent non-executive
director and members of the audit and remuneration
committee of BEP International Holdings Limited and
Theme International Holdings Limited (the securities of
both companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) on 5 June 2009 and 5 November 2009
respectively. Mr. To was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, member and chairman of the
audit committee, and member of remuneration and
nomination committee of Wai Chun Group Holdings
Limited (the securities of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) on 29 September 2009.
Mr. To is also an independent non-executive director, a
member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of China Vanguard Group Limited.

Ms. LI Mei Kuen ("Ms. Li"), aged 41, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and member
of audit committee and remunerafion committee on 23
August 2010. Ms. Li graduated from La Trobe University,
Melbourne, Australia and received a Bachelor Degree in
Commerce (accounting). She is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia. Ms. Li worked in two international accounting
firms for over 9 years. She has been actively involved
in the audit, listing and due diligence engagements
of companies in various industries and has extensive
experience in auditing and finance. She is acting as
the chief financial officer and company secretary
of a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

HBEREE (THEE]D 385 RZBEERE
—A+- Eﬁ%&%ﬂ-‘”&?ﬂ%i#iﬂﬁ%% >
ENZERTIRERTHNEESRE - L LR
FARMNNERBABHEGHEE LB o
WABESE > BAEEARETMEBLAR
BRAT - HERRETHMELMERATARTF
EB)EHNMEEMERLATZESE - HAK
ARNEHMHASREBETMABEE - &
ER—EERE SR - ST MITE
B ERBH -GN QAR LTRBEEEER
BR+TEER -HAER-_ZBhEANARA
—EEAFET-RAEADRIEZALEEE
BERERERAARLERLEBERAA (%
MEAARZESFEBIMERLT) 2BILEH
TEZEURBERZEGRFHNZEERE - i
EERZZBEZNFEARTNABEZEAER
’Eli BRERAT (RARZREFEHRMER
M ZBUFHPTES BERZEEFHERE
Jﬁ URFMEESERIEREEGZHE - #
EERBRENERDERAITAZBELEHT
B BREEERERTMEEERE -

FEBET(FLt))  41m R=Z- ii
NAZHZHEZERARQARABIIATE
u&%&%ﬁ%&%ﬁ@ﬂéééﬁié°$ﬁi$

ERBENEWATLa Trobe X2 » HEEHE
B2y THAEBSHAMAS KBNS

REZEE -FPUTERWMAEBREMER
FRERESE  HEEEB2ESANTEZE
O LTRBRBERFZIHE  RERERY
BAEAELERR FRI RN -BEBH
ERXGFBERIAAERLT 2 AR HEEREY
BERAAWE -



Aptus Holdings Limited
AEZERER QA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EZESERSHEEAE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. POON Lai Yin Michael ("Mr. Poon”) was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and
an Authorized Representative of the Company on 11
June 2010. He holds a bachelor degree in Administrative
Studies from York University of Canada and a Master
Degree in Practicing Accounting from Monash University
of Australia. Mr. Poon is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of CPA Australia. He is responsible for managing
all aspects of the Company’'s finance including
corporate finance, due diligence, tax and treasury. He
also ensures the Company’s compliance with corporate
policies and procedures as well as providing financial
analysis on potential merger and acquisition projects.

Mr. WONG Kim Ket (*"Mr. Wong”) is an executive director
of a subsidiary of the Company, Hsing Long Trading Co.
Pte., Ltd., in Singapore, which is mainly engaged in the
edible oil tfrading business. He is one of the founders of
the subsidiary and has been managing the subsidiary for
more than 10 years. His formal educational background
is in computer engineering while also holding a Master
in Business Administration (MBA) from University of
Oregon in USA. His responsibilities include overall day-to-
day management and operations, and implementation
and control of new as well as existing strategies and
businesses for the subsidiary. He has more than 19 years
of working experience in international frade and financial
operations.

Mr. YU Ka Ho ("Mr. Yu”) was appointed as General
Manager of The Shrine of Hong Kong Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which is mainly
engaged in the sales of boxes for storage spaces
of deceased cremated ashes and other ancestral
properties business, in June 2010. He graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree
in Financial Engineering and holds a Master Degree in
Mathematics in Finance and Actuarial Science from
University of Paris Dauphine jointly with City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Yu is responsible for the overall daily
operations of the company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board strived to uphold good corporate governance
and adopt sound corporate governance practices.
The Directors strongly believe that reasonable and
sound corporate governance practices are essential
for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
enhancing shareholders’ interests.

Throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2010,
the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "Code
Provision”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules except for the deviation from the Code Provision
A.4.1. Details of which are stated under the heading
of "NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS" below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the required standard
as set out in the code of conduct regarding securities
fransactions by the Directors throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the "Board”) currently comprises
seven Directors, of whom four are Executive Directors
and three are Independent Non-executive Directors.
Two Independent Non-executive Directors have the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications or
related financial management experience and expertise.
The participation of Independent Non-executive Directors
in the Board brings independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts
of interests and management process to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders of the Company have been
duly considered.

The Board considers that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent and has received
from each of them the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant fo Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by the direction
and supervision of the Company’s business and affairs
and the ultimate responsibility for the day to day
management of the Company which is delegated fo the
management. For significant matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board, the management must report
back to and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or enfering info any commitments on
behalf of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board conducts meetfing on a regular basis and
on an ad hoc basis. Notice of at least 14 days for
the regular meetings and reasonable notice for non-
regular meetings are given to all Directors in order that
they can attend the meetings and include matters for
discussion if necessary. Board members are provided
with all agendas and adequate information for their
review within reasonable fime before the meetings. After
the meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all directors
for comments before confirmation. Minutes of board
meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the company secretary and are available for inspection
by the directors at all times. Each director is entitled to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the expense of the Company.
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The Board held at least a board meeting for each EBEEEGZEEZELHRT_AEETEEE -BZ
quarter. Details of the attendance of the Directors during Z—ZZ—ZFXA=Zt+tHLEFEREEZHER
the year ended 30 June 2010 are as follows: HBEOT
Attendance
HE=
Executive Directors HITES
Madam Cheung Kwai Lan REMLZL
(resigned on 18 June 2010) (R=B—-ZFFXA+NHBFE) 18/21
Mr. Lam Wai Pong MEBEE
(appointed on 8 January 2010) (R=F—ZFF—-HNNHEZEF) 7/21
Mr. Lau Chi Kwong BlEKREE
(appointed on 11 June 2010) (R-B—FFNA+—HEZEHF) 1/21
Mr. Chan Ting PRELE 18/21
Mr. Fung King Him Daniel BHEREE 21/21
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITESE
Mr. Tian He Nian (resigned on 18 June 2010) HBEEE (R-F—ZFEXA 1/ HFE) 11/21
Mr. Zhang Xiu Fu (resigned on 23 June 2010) RFHEXEE(R=FE—FEFENA=1+=HFF) 11/21
Mr. Zou Qi Jun BEGEE 13/21
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond HEREE 16/21
Mr. Man Fu Wah (appointed on 18 June 2010 X EEX4* (R=—FE—FFNA+/AEZER
and resigned on 23 August 2010) R-ZFE-—ZFFNA=+Z=ZHBF) N/ATE A
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

During the year, the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were segregated and performed
by Madam Cheung Kwai Lan and Mr. Chan Ting
respectively. Following the resignation of Madam Cheung
Kwai Lan on 18 June 2010, Mr. Lam Wai Pong filled the
casual vacancy as Chairman on the same day.

The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are separated to ensure a clear division between the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer’'s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business. The separation ensures a balance
of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any individual.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Code provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for specific terms and
subject to re-election. The Company has deviated from
this provision in that the Independent Non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term. They
are, however, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting ("AGM") of the
Company in accordance with Article 87 of the articles
of association (“Articles”) of the Company. Any new
Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall be subject to re-
election at the next following general meeting or at the
next following AGM of the company.

Ms. Li Mei Kuen, an Independent Non-executive Director,
has entered into a service agreement with the Company
commencing from 23 August 2010 and shall confinue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. She is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company in
accordance with the Arficles of the Company.

TREREHE

FRERATHAE R

FRADBDREEERITRAEMEE LB
A BIRREELZ T RKRELERT - FE
HLZztR_Z-ZFXATNBBEEE ®EF
MAERE B HEEFEES T ZREZ6R

BEFETRAR 2BBED  JUBRRERE
EEEETECEMHETRAREELADAEE
REEBSIEHNAI T - ZEATHRREORERE
D SEAITEEPMEMEA -

EFEZRE EEIRER

FARNEALVRREFRVTEE2EEERE
EEEHIRABREBME KRR REZEITZ
B ERBIFHTESYTRIETES  E
ARBANRASERMA (AR F87HER
ERARRBFAE (RREFAE)) L®E
RERBREEF - AHEBERZRMEES
EEACEBEHNESHEART —RANRRRE
BREML, IMBESSHIERE  AARH
ESARAARNTRERFTEAFAE LEEBE -

BUFHTESFXRLIELRALAQTFNL
R E 2HEH_—F-FFNA-1+=H
B—HEX BRFEEA-—FEETHREFIR
SEAZERBARBRERLL FTLTARE
RRARAZHAARARAZEERRBFAE £
WMESERBREEME-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board does not establish the nomination committee
at present to make recommendations to the Board
on appointment of Directors. However, the Company
follows a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for appointing new Directors or nominating suitable
candidates for approval of the shareholders either
to fill the vacancies caused by the resignation of
The

Company understands the needs tfo maintain its

Directors or to appoint additional Directors.

cost competitiveness and will review the need for a

nomination committee at an appropriate time.

Candidates are appointed to the Board on the basis of
the competencies and experience that they would be
bringing to the Company. The Company believes that
members of the Board, individually and collectively, have
satisfactorily discharged their duties to the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is tasked with the
responsibility of overseeing Board remuneration matters.
The remuneration committee is chaired by Mr. Lam
Wai Pong, an Executive Director of the Company and
Chairman of the Board. The other three remuneration
committee members are Mr. Zou Qi Jun, Mr. To Yan Ming
Edmond and Ms. Li Mei Kuen, all being Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The role of the remuneration committee is to recommend
to the Board a framework for remunerating the
Board and key executives and to determine specific
remuneration packages for each Executive Director
of the Company. In carrying out of the above, the
remuneration committee may obtain independent
external legal and other professional advice as deemed
necessary. The expenses of such advice shall be borne

by the Company.
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The remuneration package for the Executive Directors
of the Company comprises a basic salary and a
performance-related bonus for their confributions. The
Independent Non-executive Directors receive a basic
fee for their services. All revisions to the remuneration
packages of the Directors are subject fo the review and
approval of the Board. Details of directors’ remuneration
for each Director are set out in note 11 fo the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, 3 meetings for the
remuneration committee were held.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
with written terms of reference based on the guidelines
recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the mandatory provisions in
the Code Provisions. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts, interim report and quarterly reports and to
provide advices and comments thereon to the Board.

The audit committee meets at least four times each year
with management to review the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and fo discuss
auditing, intfernal control and financial reporting matters.

The audit committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
namely Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond, Mr. Zou Qi Jun and Ms.
Li Mei Kuen. Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond is the chairman
of the audit committee. Mr. Tian He Nian, Mr. Zhang Xiu
Fu and Mr. Man Fu Wah, former members of the audit
committee, resigned on 18 June 2010, 23 June 2010 and
23 August 2010 respectively.
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The audit committee met four times during the year
ended 30 June 2010.
committee member at these meetings is as follows:

Individual aftendance of each

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

To Yan Ming Edmond

Tian He Nian (resigned on 18 June 2010)

Zhang Xiu Fu (resigned on 23 June 2010)

Mr. Zou Qi Jun

Mr. Man Fu Wah (appointed on 18 June 2010
and resigned on 23 August 2010)

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s
audited results for the year ended 30 June 2010 with
management and the Company’s external auditors and
recommended it for adoption by the Board.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. A statement by the Company’s independent
auditors about their reporting responsibilities in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Group’s

consolidated financial statement is set out on page 39.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Financial Year, the aggregate amount
of remuneration to auditors for audit services was
approximately HK$2.7 million, including the Group’s
annual audit fee of approximately HK$445,000 and
approximately HK$2.3 million regarding the Disposal
Transaction, Termination of Profit Sharing Rights and
acquisition of Casdon.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board with the Audit Committee are responsible
for maintaining sound and effective internal confrol
system for the Company to safeguard its assets and
shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the
effectiveness of such system. The Board will from time
to time conduct a review of the Group’s internal control
system. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system, covering
financial, operatfional and compliance controls and risk

management functions during the year under review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such
as changes since the last review, scope and quality
of management’'s monitoring of risks; incidence of
significant conftrol failings and weaknesses identified;
and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
including the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated to executive management the
design, implementation and ongoing monitoring of such
system of internal control covering financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Qualified personnel throughout the Group
maintain and monitor this system of internal control on

an ongoing basis.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board puts great emphasis on investor relationship in
particular fair disclosure and comprehensive report of the
Company’s performance and activities.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM of the
Company and the Directors always make efforts to fully
address any questions raised by the shareholders at the
AGM.

The Company provides comprehensive information
about the Group on its website to investors and
potential investors. Hard copies of the annual reports,
interim reports, quarterly reports and circulars are all
sent to shareholders, as well they are available at the
Company’s website.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 41. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by CNPC Huayou Cu Energy
Investment Co., Limited in the PRC during the year
amounted to approximately HK$5,119,000 (2009: HKS Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, CONVERTIBLE BONDS
AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the convertible bonds, share
capital and share options of the Company during
the year are set out in notes 28, 29 and 30 fo the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 45 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2010, the Company had no retained
profits available for cash distribution and/or distribution
in specie. As at 30 June 2010, under the Companies
Law (2001 Second Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve
of approximately HK$490,107,000 and HK$15,826,000,
respectively, may be distributed to the shareholders,
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the five financial years is set out on
pages 163 and 164 of the annual report.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

&

FEEFRBERFAZSBFBTHRAFRFELS
HAZmamgasgak-

o] 53 i ik 18

R-Z-—ZFRA=+AH > AQAAALEEMT
RAEREIRE,/ ZEYDRZREEF - R
“E-ZTFRA=TH BRERERHBEARGZ
(B —FHRBITR)ZERE » RAFT
PRTFREZRDEERRERNREEI NS
490,107,0005% Tt % 15,826,000 7t - 1 B k5
ERREAR KRG BEERNEEARER
FEBZEE ROGERETTUBERAZ
ARMFRNETDIK

MHBEERME

FRAERIENRFECEEUAREERS
B2HE  HRELAFRIOIK164E °



Aptus Holdings Limited
AEZERER QA

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEZ=E#Hi&E

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Wai Pong (appointed on 8 January 2010)

Mr. Lau Chi Kwong (appointed on 11 June 2010)
Madam Cheung Kwai Lan (resigned on 18 June 2010)
Mr. Chan Ting

Mr. Fung King Him Daniel

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond

Mr. Zou Qi Jun

Mr. Man Fu Wah (appointed on 18 June 2010 and
resigned on 23 August 2010)

Ms. Li Mei Kuen (appointed on 23 August 2010)

Mr. Tian He Nian (resigned on 18 June 2010)

Mr. Zhang Xiu Fu (resigned on 23 June 2010)

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Articles of the
Company, Mr. Fung King Him Daniel and Mr. Zou Qi Jun,
being the Directors to retire by rotation, shall retire from
office at the forthcoming AGM. Save for Mr. Zou Qi Jun
who has indicated that he would not seek for re-election
at the AGM, the other retiring Director, Mr. Fung King
Him Daniel, being eligible, offers himself for re-election as
non-executive Director at the AGM.

In accordance with Article 86(3), Mr. Lam Wai Pong, Mr.
Lau Chi Kwong and Ms. Li Mei Kuen, being new Directors
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
and to fill casual vacancy, shall hold offices until the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmation
from the Independent Non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant fo Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considered all the Independent
Non-executive Directors as independent.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company
and the senior management of the Group are set out on
pages 15 to 18 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chan Ting, Mr. Fung King Him Daniel, Mr. To Yan
Ming Edmond and Mr. Zou Qi Jun have not entered into
service contracts with the Company whereas, Mr. Lam
Wai Pong, Mr. Lau Chi Kwong and Ms. Li Mei Kuen have
entered into service agreements with the Company.
The appointments of all Directors can be ferminated by
either party giving to the other not less than three months
notice in writing. They are not appointed for a specific
ferm and are subject to refirement by rotation and re-
election pursuant to the Arficles.

None of the Directors has enfered into any service
contfract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any fime
during the year.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

M

2

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares

As at 30 June 2010, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had any interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register maintained by the Company referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Share option scheme

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements. As at 30 June 2010, no share
option had been granted or agreed to be granted
to the Directors and chief executives under the
share option scheme.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation” above, at
no fime during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any body corporate, and none of the
Directors and chief executives or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2010, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company, the inferests
and short positions of the persons or corporations in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which have
been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required fo be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long Positions in Shares of the Company

Name of Shareholders

RREE/ BB

Red Rabbit Capital Limited (Note 1)
FREFBERAT (M)

Kong Lung Cheung (Note 1)

THEE (K

RW Holdings Group Limited (Note 2)

RW Holdings Group Limited (Ff3E2)

Ma Chi Ming (Note 2)

BEH (HE2)

Precise Result Profits Limited (Note 3)
Precise Result Profits Limited (Fff&3)
China Success Enterprises Limited (Note 3)
China Success Enterprises Limited ([ z£3)
China Vanguard Group Limited (Note 3)
FENRRNAERD A (KEH3)

Best Frontier Investments Limited (Note 3)
Best Frontier Investments Limited (Fff&3)
Cheung Kwai Lan (Note 4)

REH (M54)

Chan Tung Mei (Note 4)

CIECETY

RAATRBZHEE

Number of
Capacity/ ordinary
Nature of interest shares held
B/ EEHE FEEEBRHE
Beneficial owner 800,000,000
BREAA
Interest in controlled corporation 800,000,000
REBEE 2R
Beneficial owner 400,000,000
BEREAA
Interest in controlled corporation 400,000,000
RELEE 2R
Beneficial owner 420,596,428
553 2PN
Interest in controlled corporation 420,596,428
REZEEZER
Interest in controlled corporation 420,596,428
REEEE 2R
Interest in controlled corporation 420,596,428
REZEE 2R
Interest in controlled corporation 420,596,428
REEZE2ES

Interest in controlled corporation
REZZEZER

420,596,428

Percentage of
shareholding
FREAL

23.64

23.64

11.82

11.82

12.43

12.43

12.43

12.43

12.43

12.43
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Notes:

1. Mr. Kong Lung Cheung has equity interest of 100% of the
issued share capital of Red Rabbit Capital Limited. The
shares referred to herein relates to the same parcel of
shares held by Red Rabbit Capital Limited.

2. Mr. Ma Chi Ming has equity interest of 100% of the issued
share capital of RW Holdings Group Limited. The shares
referred to herein relates to the same parcel of shares held
by RW Holdings Group Limited.

3. Precise Result Profits Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Success Enferprises Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Vanguard Group Limited. Best
Frontier Investments Limited is interested in 60.38% of the
issued share capital of China Vanguard Group Limited.
Accordingly, the shares referred to herein relates to the
same parcel of shares held by Precise Result Profits Limited.

4. Madam Cheung Kwai Lan and Mr. Chan Tung Mei have
equity inferests of 99.89% and 0.11%, respectively of the
issued share capital of Best Frontier Investments Limited.
Madam Cheung Kwai Lan and Mr. Chan Tung Mei are the
spouse to each other. Accordingly, Madam Cheung Kwai
Lan and Mr. Chan Tung Mei are deemed tfo be interested
in the shares of Best Frontier Investments Limited held by
each other under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The shares referred to herein relates to the same parcel of
shares held by Precise Result Profits Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2010, so far as
is known to the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company, no other person has inferests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
as recorded in the register required fo be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, or, were, directly
or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no significant transactions
which require to be disclosed as connected transactions
in accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s one
customer accounted for 100% of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted for 100%. Purchases from the Group’s
two largest suppliers accounted for 100% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amount to 78%.

None of the Directors of the Company, or any of their
associates or any other shareholders, which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders
of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business that
competed or might compete with the business of the
Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, af
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Subject to the deviations as disclosed in Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 19 to 27 of the
annual report, the Company has complied with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practice set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules during the year under review.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the significant subsequent events of the Group
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2010 have been audited by Messrs. W.H. Tang &
Partners CPA Limited who will retire and offer themselves
for re-appointment at the AGM. A resolution for their
reappointment will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Pong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 September 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT %5 3 #% RHT ) &

HRESSIASHEMBRAT

Level 7, Parkview Centre,
7 Lau Li Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Tel :(852) 23426130
Fax : (852) 23426006

Ay o 5 8 7 3R SR A R
P

T3 1 (852) 23426130
th 4 : (852) 23426006

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF APTUS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Aptus Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set
out on pages 41 to 162, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory nofes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the frue and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

W.H. TANG

& PARTNERS
CPA LIMITED

BEEERERAFINMKER
(RESHEZMALZHFRLAE)

FEREMCERIHERENZ12E[BBERE
RAB(TEQADREMBLE (UTHBIE
8 z2HREUBHRK EFEER=-Z2-%
FRAZ+THZESHBEMRRIRX - BEZB L
FEZGARER RETEKRER REE
BEBRNGESRERERUARTESIHEE
MER ALK EHEE -

EENGSUBRRARBEZRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT %V #% & Ak &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
tfowards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the enftity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

B2 & E

FRHM2EARREBEARBMYELZE R
EMBHRRBARZR  EO2BRRE|E - K
Bzt ABERNEAMEN - ARBATE
REABREANRREFMEMATE EHAEET
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BUR R ZBAT 2 H & - BIET A ARG
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o ERFERERARE  RBMETEEZER
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MEES - AR BEZERRF  EAER
HERB ABEHNMERRER - BRTE
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 30 June 2010 and of the profit and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

W.H. Tang & Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tang Wai Hung
Practising Certificate Number P03525
Hong Kong, 10 September 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #Z& sk

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BZE—F—FFNA=1HIFE

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
B E FERT FTER
Continuing operations HEREEL
Revenue = 8 3,780 18,292
Cost of sales P AR A (3.763) (18,246)
Gross profit ER 17 46
Other revenue H sl 8 1,207 14
Administrative expenses THXH (38,148) 4.911)
Finance costs A& A 9 (24,969) (36,984)
Loss before taxation RR %1 Al A5 18 10 (61,893) (41,835)
Income tax expenses RSB X 13 - -
Loss for the year from BELSEEK
continuing operations REEEE (61,893) (41,835)
Discontinued operations BRIEEK
Profit (loss) for the year from ERIEEBRZEAFE
discontinued operations wmA (E8) 14 190,979 (28,557)
Profit (loss) for the year AEERRN (BE) 129,086 (70,392)
Attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company EATRREFEA 129,051 (70,214)
Non-controlling interests FEERER 35 (178)
129,086 (70,392)
Earnings (loss) per share BRER (BE)
From continuing operations and REFEREXBR
discontinued operations BRIEER
Basic B=9N 16 HK6.39 cents 1l (HK3.99 cents 7&l)
Diluted s HK3.21 cents &4l N/ATE A
From continuing operations REFEKSEEY
Basic 2R 16 (HK3.07 cents #1lli)) (HK2.37 cents #lL)

Diluted g N/ATiE A N/ATE A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  #RE2HE K&K

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HZE—F—FFNA=1HIFE

2010 2009
—E-EfF —EEAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHEx FHET
Profit (loss) for the year AEERERN (BE) 129,086 (70,392)
Other comprehensive income for TEEEMEEKE
the year
Exchange differences on ReE BBz
translation of financial MHREREEZ
statements of overseas EHE%
operations
from continuing operations REBELEEK 486 (481)
Total comprehensive income AEEZ@EWE (B5EB)
(loss) for the year FEbE 129,572 (70,873)
Aftributable to: G
Equity holders of the Company AT REFEA 129,391 (70,650)
Non-controlling interests R R 181 (223)
Total comprehensive income AEEZ@EKE (FE)
(loss) for the year R 129,572 (70,873)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 30 June 2010 R-ZE—ZFFXA=+H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Prepaid lease payments

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
and prepayments

Prepaid lease payments

Properties under development

Tax recoverable

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade payables, accrued liabilities
and other payables

Borrowings -

due within one year

Liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE
M- BERRE
[
BNBAERE

REBEE

FE W BR R B EL i FE Uk
B R AN IR

ENEERE
BEPE
] Uy = 35 R
RITHEEFRAE

IRKEHECEE

RERE

AR BRtEER

HAt B FRIE
EE -

—FAEH

IEFRHEREZ

EENHREAE

Notes
B =

18
20
22

23
22
24

25

15

26

27

Aptu‘s Holdings Limited
BMiEERAERRQA

)

MBMRRE

2010 2009
—E-2F —EELEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FTEx
769 45
904,550 -
139,984 -
1,045,303 45
5,752 34,995
3.888 -
15,890 -

10 1

8,930 1,990
34,470 36,986

- 350,193

34,470 387,179
15,164 10,739

- 36,145

15,164 46,884

- 123,825

15,164 170,709
19,306 216,470
1,064,609 216,515
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 30 June 2010 R-ZE—ZFXA=+H

Non-current liabilities

Trade payables, accrued liabilities

and other payable
Borrowings
Convertible bonds

Net assets (liabilities)

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements on pages 41 to
162 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors on 10 September 2010 and are signed on its

behalf by:

FERBEE

Hib AN 5E
BE&
ABRRES

EE(BE)FE

RAER B
&N
1@

FEA5 1 2
FIERER

HEn

Lam Wai Pong
MEFH
Director
EF

EAERN - BEtRER

AARREFEA

GERBRRE

2010 2009
—E-ZfF —EENE
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B = FHERT FERT
26 20,000 -
27 87.205 -
28 252,672 303,244
359,877 303,244
704,732 (86,729)
29 33,837 17,628
653,257 (119.412)
687,094 (101,784)
17,638 15,055
704,732 (86.729)

BANZRIQREZHEVBBREN = —ZF
NATEEEESHERKETR  IHT

ATRBEE

Lau Chi Kwong
ZlEH
Director
EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HREREmBEx

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BZE—F—FFNA=1HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AORREREARL
Refained
Convertible profits Non-
Share Share bonds  Translation Capital (Accumulated ~ Disconfinued controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses)  operations Tofal interests Total
TER REET

Bx  RfEE  EREE  BEBE  BARE  (REER)  CRLER gt FERER &3t
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HKS000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TER TEn

At July 2008 RIZENFLA-B 17444 95,051 10712 2516 15,826 (196,538) - (32.989) 15,28 (17.71)
Transafer fo discontinued operafions BRZEALEK - - - (19.990) - - 19.990 - - -
Shares issued on exercise of opfions  REREETE
mETRH 184 1,671 - - - - - 1855 - 1855
Totol comprehensive loss REER2EFE
forhe yeor #4 - - - ) -y -0 @) (087

A30June 2009 and 1July 2009 HZRBAEAR

STARZEEAF
tA-8 17,628 96,722 10.712 4,09 15,826 (266,752) 1999 (101,784) 15,006 (86,729)
Redemption of converfible BET#R
bonds reserve BHGE - - (10.712) - - 10712 - - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-EHELT
(Note 31(0)) (H231(0) - - - - - - - - 2402 2402
Issue of converfible bonds LTARES - - 440,085 - - - - 440,085 - 440,085
Shares issued on exercise of options  REREE(TER
Bk 187 1,757 - - - - - 1,944 - 1,944
Placing of shares BERS 1,600 37,400 - - - - - 39,000 - 39,000
Subscription of shares JERR 1222 31428 - - - - - 38,650 - 38,650
Issue of shores on exercise of RTRRESETR
converfible bonds [k 13,200 316,800 (170,202) - - - - 169,798 - 159,798
Disposal of jointly HELREH
controlled entities 4 - - - - - - (199%)  (1999%) - (19.990)
Tofal comprehensive income AERREUEAE
for the year - - - 30 - 129,051 - 129,391 181 129,672
At 30 June 2010 -2-f

R 33,837 490,107 269,883 4,430 15820 (126989) - 687,094 17,638 704,732
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BZE—F—FFNA=1HIFE

Notes:

®

(i)

Capital reserve arisen from the Group’s reorganisation
on 27 February 2002 and represented the excess of the
combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s issued shares.

On 27 May 2010, the Company issued six years zero-coupon
Hong Kong dollar convertible bonds, due on 27 May 2016
(the "Bonds") for a principal amount of HK$850,000,000
which is part of the consideration for the acquisition
of Casdon. The Bonds are convertible, at the option of
bondholders into ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.25 per
share, at any time from 27 May 2010 up to and including 27
May 2016.

The Bonds contain two components, a liability and an
equity element. The liability component is carried as a long-
term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The equity element is
presented in equity as “Convertible bonds reserve”.

B &

®

@D

EXRBRE_EE-F-A-TtHZAKE
EAFEE ARFUBZHBRARANEHE
EFEBRBAQFACRITROCEHEZE

R-ZZF-FFHEA=-TLA  RATRTAED
ZEZERABRTURRES R-ZT—<ER1A
“t+tREH(TES]D  ££55850,000,000
B BRUWEBCosdonzBHRE - BH5HE
ATR=Z-—ZFRA-+LHARE=Z—XR&F
EA=++tH (BfFZA) LHEATMAERE -
BRERSROZEBTZANSARESESER
AEATEREMECIOETZEER -

BEHEEMIBN - LERERITD - AEBORER
BERTUARMEENSRXIR  EERER
FHEFEEFHAEERL - EEHHRNER
RBMET TR IR E S ] o

mERRRER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BZE—F—FFNA=1HIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before taxation
Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Adjustment for:

Interest income

Interest expenses

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on goodwill

Loss on disposal of an associate

Amortization of prepaid lease
payments
Share of results of an associate

Reversal of allowances
recognized in respect of
doubtful receivable

Gain on termination of profit
sharing right on oil field

Gain on disposal of jointly
controlled entities

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables and
prepayments

(Decrease) in trade payables,
accrued liabilities and other
payables

Cash (used in) from operations
Tax (paid) refund

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Notes
B =

REER

BB ATER (B18)
SHEEEER
SRIEER

B THEBFLAR:
FEBA
FMEHX
ME - BERREITE

HEME BER
RBEZEE
BMEZRESSE
HE-—BBEARZ
g

FAHEE R

it —BBE QT2
ES3 |
BEO R ER
RERBE

#& 1k 5 E B
o B2 WS
HEHE
4 Pl e

EEESEHAI 2
REBERE
FERD

i WS BR R B EL At W R IR

LR A KRR D
(38 m)
FENRM - BEtEER
H A f& 3 7B
(R2)

REXB TR ABERE
(BF) EEBE

REXWK (FA) G
REEHE

Aptu‘s Holdings Limited
BMiEERAERRQA

AN BE=

FERERER
2010 2009
—E—-EF —EEAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FET
(61,893) (41,835)
208,725 (27.072)
146,832 (68.907)
(525) 611)
24,969 42,438
42 19,765

- 3

- 31,761

- 7

- 466
- (124)
- (100)
(11,031) -
(197,707) -
(37.420) 24,698
- 2,591
2,719 (5.640)
(6.047) (4,761)
(40,748) 16,888
(17,755) 554
(58.503) 17,442
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #HRERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B Z-—ZE—FTFENA=1HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B E FERT FHExT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREXK
Interest received 2 W FE 525 611
Purchases of property, plant BEYE BER
and equipment ®RiB (690) (6.988)
Purchases of construction in BEREEIR
progress - (22,994)
Purchases of properties under BERRPYE
development (1,988) -
Proceeds from disposal of jointly HERRES
controlled entities ERZEBRE 31(a) 403,205 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — BB AR 31(b) (84,982) -
Disposal of jointly controlled HELRE
entities = 31(a) (39.297) -
Compensation on termination KRB FE
of profit sharing right on oil field D EE 2 B 45,270 -
Proceeds from disposal of an HE-—BEEAT
associate Z 8 IE - 2,006
Purchases of prepaid lease BAENBEERE
payments - (316)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBFE (FTA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES R THE 322,043 (27.681)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES S -4
Interest paid SR E=\ - (10,882)
Issue of shares under exercise HERERTE
of share options mE 1T R 42 1,944 1,855
Placing of shares BRERH 40,000 -
Repayment of borrowings HBERE (2.000) -
Net raising of borrowings EEEEFHE 2,000 19,685
Redemption of convertible bonds ~ FEE AR &% (323,612) -
Settlement of promissory note HERNE (15,000) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RMEXEL (FTH) e
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HeRE (296.668) 10,658
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH B&RZFERLER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) BinEE (33.128) 419
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FURERER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HE&EH 40,850 40,629
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREFHEZE
changes 1,208 (198)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHREAERER

AT END OF THE YEAR R£®A 8,930 40,850




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. The Company’s registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is located at Unit
B. 20/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

In prior years, the Company’s subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities’ functional currency was Renminbi
("RMB"). Due to the discontinued operations of the
Group’s business operations in the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC") and the foreseeable expansion
in Hong Kong, the management reassessed the
functional currency of the subsidiaries and changed
the functional currency from RMB to Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$") during the year. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 32.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

—REH

ALBAARFEEREAMRLZZHRREE
RAR - HRGREEZAAIZER LT o &
AT ZEMPEE LA Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands » & it B U N E BB 78T
B33 EMEA P L 208BE ©

RRBzMBLARRARZEHERRNUE
FEZHEEEDBARBTARED - B
RAZERFEARKANR (PR 2%
BEBEBROARILER  URBHERE
BRREY  EEEZENFRENTHKN
BARZIHEEEY  UKDEERAAR
WMELSEBT (BRI - GEMBHRERIIN
BLES - MBRTRERABZIEEEN -

FRABAZEBEBRREER - R EM
BRRZEBENM 32 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (*HKFRSs™)

FE R #Ta] RAEIETEEMBR
HEN(HFEMBREEAN]D

RAFE  AEBCEAUTHERSH

E'rﬁ’“““’(Fé%ﬁﬁgfﬁ"éj)ﬁﬁ{fﬁZ%ﬁﬁT&

BABFTER ~ BR] R R ([ R] REIEET
ERMBREED]D -

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations ("“new and revised HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA™).

Hong Kong Accounting Standard ~ Presentation of Financial Statements E-He ] B &z 25
(HKAS") 1 (Revised 2007) (IEBestes))
F1H(Z22LEET)
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs ERETENELS BERE
(ZZZLEHB)
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and EREHENSEIZER MELZEBIAR
Obligations Arising on Liquidation EALACHEY) WEBRFRELZER
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-ime Adoption of Hong Kong EARBRSEAEIS  ERRMBERERSEL
Financial Reporting Standards (&1483T)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)  Cost of an Investment in BEMBREENEE  RERWELR-
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled REBEHELZEIS HEEHERAHED
Entity or Associate (BFTK) ZEA
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and ERMBREER BERARZH
Cancellations VA HEN)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations BRUBREEL E3 N
S35 (£453T)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about ERBBREE WEEESRIAZR
Financial Instruments EFEACHES!
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments BEANBREEAEE EELE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & HKAS 39 Embedded Derivatives B (ARIHRERE RAASTETA
(Amendments) ZEE)-RBEMRR
FRETENEIR
(3T%)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction EEERMERERE RFUHERERE
of Real Estate ZEE)-REEIH
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in B EARYBRERE R-BENEEIRE
a Foreign Operation ZEE)-RBE16H ey
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to EEERMBRERE NEBAIRERGER
Owners ZES)-REEH
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers EEERMBRERE ERFEZLE

ZE88)-REE18E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERHIREEBITIEEMRE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (*"HKFRSs") - continued

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
improvements fo HKFRSs 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation fo the amendment

to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the current or prior accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and

disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has infroduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the
consolidated financial statements) and changes in
the format and content of the consolidated financial
statements.

BEEFH ((FEMBREE
) -4,

ERUBHEEN (BTR) BRUBHEEAESE
B FRZZRNE
ERUBREEAREL
—#t

ERUBREER (BTX) R-BENFEMHZ
ERUBESEARE

Gl EHES R
539575180

BRT A& b - SRANETR] RAZER] BB
BHBELENHAEBARARATH S8
BeHRelBRRYBERERNTE -

ENEEINREEZHITREETEEM
BiR& A

EEETEREIN (—FELFKET)H
BH#H &k z 25

BEEREFEANFIN (ZEZLEFEE) 5
AZHARLE (BEEBIFEUBERE
MERBE) RGEaMBRERZBAMNATZ
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (*"HKFRSs") - continued

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only - continued

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 requires the presentation of operating
segments in a manner consistent with the internal
reports that are regularly reviewed by the Group's
chief operating decision maker (see note 7 for
details). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting which required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical).
The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s operating segments.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements
in respect of financial instruments which are
measured at fair value. The Group has not provided
comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional
provision set out in the amendments.

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20102
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures?

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B8R MiaE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (*"HKFRSs") - continued

FER I REETEEBYE
BEEFH ((FEMBREE
A1) -4,

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and ERERIREEZHTIREETEEAH

disclosure only - continued

BREEA -8

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional Exemptions for EERBREEAEIR BRRAALZ
First-time Adopterss CHES BN SS

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemptions from EREMBREENER BRRAALIRER
Comparative HKFRS 7 (BFI ) R REERETR
Disclosures for First-time RELBERD
Adopters® BR#R

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based EENBREEANEZE SEURSLEEIURS
Payment Transactions® CHES) RERZRAZXH°

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ ERNKREERES SMIA

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum &8 (AR ERERE REEREEHN

(Amendment) Funding Requirement? ZEE)-RE BARE
E14% (BT F)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities B8 (EREERERE URATAEHEH

with Equity Instruments® ZEE)-REZI9 Af

! Amendments that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010,
as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
July 2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
February 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2010

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
July 2010

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1

January 2013

' EEBTRACERAELA-AR-T—
ZE-A—B (WER) AZRMBRZFE
HEEX

2 H-Z-ZHELA-HR-F-——5-5
—B(MER) R2RMAKRFERBEXR

S REE——F-F-BRZEMBZEE
HEEX

¢ R-E-SF-A-BHZABAZEE
HEEX

° RIE-ZF-A-HIAZERMKRZFE
HEEX

¢ R-E-ZFELA-HRZEMBZEE
HEEX

7 REB-—=ZF—-F—HAZERKBZFE
HEEX



Aptus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010
MEEREAERA A —E - EER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (*"HKFRSs") - continued

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments infroduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and will be effective from 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The
Standard requires all recognized financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be
measured at either amortized cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortized cost. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured
at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended
in relation to the classification of leasehold land.
The amendments will be effective from 1 January
2010, with early application permitted. Before the
amendments to HKAS 17, lessees were required
to classify leasehold land as operating leases
and presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendments have removed such a requirement.
Instead, the amendments require the classification
of leasehold land to be based on the general
principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the
lessee. The application of the amendments to HKAS
17 might affect the classification and measurement
of the Group’s leasehold land. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Interpretations issued by HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM Listing Rules. A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial information

The measurement basis used in the preparatfion of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial instruments are stated
at their fair value as explained in the accounting
polices set out below.

Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale
is stated at lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Basis of preparation of the financial statements -
continued

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the resulfs
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future accounting periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements and
estimates with significant risk of material adjustments
in the next year are shown in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made fo the
financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All inter-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and loss of a
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 July 2009, losses
applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s
equity were allocated against the inferests of the
Group except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests had a binding obligation and were able o

make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. *EEHBKE-&
continued

FiEHEZERDEE

Non-current assets held for sale

(o) Non-current assets and disposal groups are (o) RFRBEERHEAR 2 REES

classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single fransaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will be
tfransferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies
before the reclassification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets (except for certain assets
and explained below), or disposal groups,
are recognized at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned, are
deferred tax assets and financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries). These assets,
even if held for sale, would contfinue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in note 3.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

3. FEEFBKR-@&
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Non-current assets held for sale - continued

(b) Discontinued operation (b) B#ILERK

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or a part
of single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operation, or is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (as referred to in (a) above), if earlier. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.
Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face on the consolidated income
statement, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognized on the
measurement of fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kAR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values,
at the date of exchange of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition under Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard ("HKFRS") 3 “"Business
Combinations” are recognized at their fair values at
the acquisition date, except for non-current assets
(disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontfinued Operations, which are
recognized and measured at fair value less costs to
sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as
an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognized. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the

excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was
initially measured at the non-controlling interest’s
proportion of the net fair value of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Interest in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group reports its interests in jointly controlled
entities using proportionate consolidation. The
Group’s share of the assefs, liabilities, income
and expenses of the jointly controlled entities are
combined with the Group’s similar items in the
consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line
basis.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a jointly
controlled entity is accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for goodwill
arising in a business combination (see the
accounting policy above).

When a group entity transacts with a jointly
controlled entity of the Group, unrealized profits or
losses are eliminated to the extent to the Group’s
interest in the jointly confrolled entity, except fo the
extent that unrealized losses provided evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case the full amount of losses is recognized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interest in associates are
initially recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the associates less any impairment in the
value of individual investments. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds ifs
inferest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
Additional losses are provided only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group'’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
associate recognized at the date of acquisition is
recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is

assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit

and loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Interests in associates - continued

Where a group entity tfransacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant

associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition is carried at cost
less impairment losses and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units ("CGU"), or groups of CGU, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized
directly in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill recognized is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

3.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

REEATRZESE -8

HERBEREASEREATRS Al
BEREAEENEREEE AR 2B -

[}

I

WEBEEZHBDEREABERERSES
RYBRGEHBRRRPEBLZ5 -

MEENRNS  BEDRIGIESA
WEFELEHRRETZR2HBREE
BN ((REELEN ) RREELEN
Al -BIBRBEBECRESELEVASHE
ETREIRARERENATRHRRE
FETRERNS - RRERBREE 2R
BREECBHEMS  BoRBEZRS
ELEBEURZMBFETEAETRER
Ao MRETEFEN 2 TREESEDNZ
B2 REE  ARESESLBEREE
ArREZENHEBREE  HEAE
ZEURNBEREERABEZLAIBRER
BUHMEE BEZEMRERSED
HEERGERERAER - BEZRHES
BREZHBERTRE -

HEAHERSELEN  FEHERS
CHERSTTACRR BB ZEGEE -

AE MR



Aptus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010
MEEREAERA A —E - EER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of gas and gas appliances are
recognized when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Gas transportation revenue and gas connection
fee income are recognized when the corresponding
services are performed.

Sales of edible oil products and mineral materials
are recognized when goods are delivered and title
has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset (other than
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss)
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold buildings, leasehold improvement, gas
distribution network, gas storage equipment, other
equipment, office equipment, furniture and fixtures,
motor vehicles and computers equipment, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any identified impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the property, plant and equipment to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalized as an additional cost of that property,
plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
at rates sufficient tfo write off their cost less
accumulated impairment losses over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold buildings 3%-5%
Leasehold improvement 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer equipment 20%-25%
Office equipment 7%-25%
Motor vehicles 6%-14%
Gas distribution network 5%-10%
Gas storage equipment 5%-31%
Other equipment 8%-19%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued used of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognized.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for the Group’s own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less
any recognized impairment loss. Consfruction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined by the total development costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to completion and applicable selling
expenses.

On completion, the amount will be transferred to
properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Inventories

Inventories, including construction materials, gas
and gas appliances for sales, are stated at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted-average method. Net realizable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs to
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sales.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognized
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added fo the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized as
expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentfive to entfer into an
operating lease are recognized as reduction of
rental expense over the lease tferm on a straight-line
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Leasing - continued
Leasehold land and building

Land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification, leasehold land which title is
not expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the
lease term is classified as an operating lease unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill

At each end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assetfs to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognized as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of
the asset’s value in use or its net selling price.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of ifs recoverable amount,
such that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognized as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is freated as
a revaluation increase under that other standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to confrol the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Taxation - continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is seftled or the asset is
realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
income statement, except when it relates to items
that are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, fransactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At each end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the refranslation of
monetary items, are recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements
and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognized directly in other comprehensive

income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency franslation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).
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HEZERERAQA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assefs acquired arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation on or after 1 July 2005 are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
franslated at the rate of exchange prevailing atf the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognized in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the
statement of financial position at cost.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible info known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not

restricted as to use.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Provisions

Provision are recognized when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the Directors’ best estimate of the consideration
required to seftle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, and taking info account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to seftle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect is material).

Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefits schemes
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits

"MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance

scheme (the

for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when conftributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. ¥ EESHHE-&
continued
Employee benefits - continued

EESEMN-&

() Retirement benefits schemes - continued (o) EUEEF 2 &

(®)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary that
operated in the People’s Republic of China
and Singapore are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government and Central Provident
Fund Scheme, respectively. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute pension, based on
a certain percentage of their payroll costs, to
the pension schemes. The conftributions are
charged to consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the pension schemes.

Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, have contributed or
may contribute to the Group. Upon the exercise
of share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per
share over nominal value of the shares, and
the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded by
the Company in the share premium account.
Options which are cancelled prior to their
exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from
the register of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZERERAQA

eRIR

TRHEENREBAGENIREEERERAT
BEEHMRNZAINARER -EREER
EREBEEURFETE - RERER
B ARERBRTEREERERAET
HEEEZRERA (BLOTEEESA
RIRAFELSBEBAR) 2EREER
MERTFREAHEEZESHEESETHME
BZRVE XEXTFEFNER - BWE
BATEKBERS ARZEREESSRE
EMEEELE 2R RAREEEEERS
B -

RE MR



Aptus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010
BEZEREAERAQ A —E - EER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. ¥ EESHHE-&

continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognized and derecognized
on a frade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the fime frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
tfransaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial assef,
or where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is
recognized on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments (other than financial assets classified
as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net
gains and losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each end of the
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including trade and other
receivables and prepayments, and bank balances
and cash are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVIPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at each end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include Group’s past experience of collecting
payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost,
an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of frade
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognized in profit or loss. When the trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset af the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according fo the
substance of the confractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instfrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables,
accrued liabilities and other payables, borrowings
and promissory note are subsequently measured
at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. *EESHBE-&

continued

Financial instruments - continued

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. Conversion option that
will be seftled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’'s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate of similar non-convertible debfs.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of
the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity as convertible bonds

reserve.

At each end of the reporting period, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, represented
by the conversion option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company,
will remain in convertible bonds reserve until the
conversion opfion is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be
tfransferred to share premium). Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be
released to the retained earnings. No gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss upon conversion or

expiration of the conversion option.

LRIR-&
B R &

RRBRT2ABRRESBEEERER
B TREXEIAFIAEEREA
ZHER - BHEEEHE2RENA SR
EEEBERAARAAGEEBE 2 BHET
AEXNHEGRE 2EA¥ETA-

RERERE  AENS 2 ATEEE
B TRREEZRTHEEREE - &
FTRRESFEREREARERD 2
AVEZER (DBEASESTRAR
%2R U THRRES BENS R
A

REJ/ERR  TRREFZABEBIK
RERARENEHER AR - R
(MEEERI ERATARNEER 2
R SRERTRRESFHRERN - EE
BRETERS L (ARTRRESFRAM
Ve EHREEBERMDEE) - HIRRE
REBADGARETE  ARTRRES
BIRZEFEBARBER - BREE
BRYEREF  TERBEEARIRERE
i3 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments - continued

Convertible bonds - continued

Transaction costs that related to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortized over that the period of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has fransferred substantially all
the risks and rewards or ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when and
only when, the Group’s obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognized and
the consideration paid or payable is recognized in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. *EEHBE-&

continued

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees or
other eligible participants of the Company

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity as share option reserve.

At each end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognized in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to
share opftion reserve.

At the tfime when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognized in share option
reserve will be fransferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognized in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings.

The financial impact of the share options granted
and fully vested before 1 July 2005 is not recorded in
the Company’s or the Group’s financial statements
until such time as the options are exercised, and no
charge is recognized in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options granted
in the year. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting share issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares
is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior
to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement
benefits scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
asset that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for its infended use or sale,
are capitalized as part of the costs of that asset.
Capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their infended

use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more
infermediaries, the party:
- conftrols, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Company or
Group;

- has an interest in the Company that gives
it significant influence over the Company
or Group; or

- has joint control over the Company or
Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B8R MiaE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Related parties - continued

(i

(iii)

@iv)

)

v

(vii)

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Company or
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Company or Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3,
management has made the following judgments
that have significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements. The key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are also discussed below:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking intfo account of their estimated
residual value. The determination of the useful
lives and residual values involve management’s
estimation. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and
equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation in the year and the estimate will be
changed in the future period.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group fo estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 30 June 2010, the carrying amount of
goodwill is approximately HK$904,550,000 (2009:
HK$Nii) with no impairment loss recognized. Details
of impairment test for goodwill are set out in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Income taxes

As at 30 June 2010, no deferred tax asset was
recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position in relation to the estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$29,376,000 (2009:
HK$5,969,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The reliability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are more than expected, a material
recognition of deferred tax asset may arise, which
would be recognized in the consolidated income
statement for the period in which such recognition
takes place.

Share option expenses

The share option expenses are subject to the
limitations of the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and the uncertainty in estimates used by
management in the assumptions. The estimates
include limited early exercise behavior, expected
interval and frequency of open exercise periods in
the share option life, and other relevant parameters
of the share option model (see note 30 for the
estimates).

The number of options fo be vested at the end of
vesting period involves management estimation.
Should the number of options being vested at the
end of vesting period be changed, there would be
material changes in the amount of share option
benefits recognized in the consolidated income
statement and share option reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Estimated allowance of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability
of receivables. Allowance is applied to frade
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of allowance
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectation on the recoverability of trade
receivables is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of
tfrade receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.

Convertible bonds

Referring to the agreement entered into between
the Company and the holder(s) of convertible
bonds (the "Bondholders”) each Bondholder will
have the right to require the Company to redeem
in whole or in part of the convertible bonds of such
Bondholder(s) on the Put Option Date together
with interest accrued to the Put Option Date. Any
early redemption request from the Bondholders will
cause unexpected cash outflow from the Company
and will have an impact on the going concern
of the Company. Up to the date of the financial
statements approved by the Board, the Bondholder
confirmed not fo request any early redemption of
the convertible bonds within the next twelve months.
As such, in the opinion of the directors, at the end
of the reporting period, the liability porfion of the
convertible bonds is classified under non-current
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able fo continue as
a going concern while maximizing the retfurn
to shareholders through the optimization of the
debt and equity balance. The capital structure
of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
borrowings and convertible bonds disclosed in notes
27 and 28 respectively, and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
share capital disclosed in note 29, reserves and
accumulated losses as disclosed in consolidated
statements of changes in equity. The management
reviews the capital structure by considering the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.

Categories of financial instruments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables and prepayments,
deposit and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, frade payables, accrued liabilities
and other payables, borrowings and convertible
bonds. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its tfrade receivables, other receivables and bank
balances. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligaftion by the counterparties
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
in the

recognized financial assets stated

consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debfs.
In addiftion, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual frade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. UBEMEEBHERBK &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES -
continued
Credit risk - continued EERE-8
The Group has no significant concentration of credit AEEVWESAEEETEKE  SEER
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of DNAOBERZHFAREE

counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the HREFHFBES FMERFEZRA
counterparties are authorized banks in the Hong RIT BWARBELZEERARER -

Kong. Singapore and the PRC.

Foreign currency risk v s 2 b

The Group conducts its treasury functions and REBUNINEETHER I ELXREE
maintains certain bank balances and cash in FTHEERITERRIES > FItEmE IR
foreign currencies, hence is exposed to foreign by o REBZBYFTEIINEER2ESHME
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign AN RS o AN B A0 IS B R IR
currency risk by closely monitoring the movements el EEEBEEINIERRILGEHRE
of the foreign currency exchange rates. The Group ZRHEZERH P EKRIPERR -

currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES -
continued

Foreign currency risk - continued

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities, other than the functional
currency of respective Group entities (RMB/Hong
Kong dollars ("HKS$")), at the reporting date are as

follows:

—e-%x
HK$’ 000

Singaporean dollar (*SGD")  Fmn# st (Mt 1)

HKS BT 1,075,988
2,519
1,079

RMB AR
United States dollar ("US$") ZEx(TExl)

HEEEEEEERBKR -8

S ELBE - 4

AEBMUREEEEERNINEEE (A
R /Brx (B UiEastEzE
WEEREBRERBREA ZREAENT

Assets Liabilities

&E =81

2009 2010 2009
“EENF —F-BF -TINF
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
Fn  FEx  FER

200 46 18
50,557 371,269 346,839
335,326 3.726 126,991
1,141 - 105

As the Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in HKS, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, change of foreign currency rates
against HK$ do not have significant impact on the
operating result of the Group. Therefore, sensitivity
analysis of foreign exchange risk is considered not
necessary.

MAAEEZAERBEIENBTH
- AADEERH  MERBTZES
BRUAEE 2 SERBLREALE
R 25 BB SNE 2 BURE 517 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES -
continued

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-bearing assets resulted
from the changes in inferest rates because the
interest rates of bank deposits are not expected to
change significantly.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings
and convertible bonds. Borrowings obtained at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Borrowings aft fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s
borrowings are set out in note 27.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to convertible bonds. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at fixed rate so as to
minimize the cash flow interest rate risk.

Sensitive analysis

At 30 June 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates on HK$ denominated borrowings, with all
other variable held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group's profit by HKSNil (2009: loss of
approximately HK$361,000). The above sensitivity
analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instrument in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end
of next reporting period. The analysis was performed
on the same basis for 2009.

HEEEEEEERBKR -8

I 22 3 B

FEBUREAGFEEE  MAKEEZIK
ARRERERABRZ TSN EREY
g ARAHRTERRNETSHREKX
28 FHit EEEEHNESHTEY
FRREEELEEREE -

FEBZRNERBDRAEBEUARATRR
B BB ZIREAEEAERAZR
SHREFEAR - ELEEAEREEA
EATENERAR AEBZEEFER
RMiEE27 -

AEETARZITRRES 2 DA FENER
Bk - AEBeBRARFETEEE B
UESRERERENZER -

R-ZZE-ZFXA=+H BFFHMLS
FREFTE  HF BT EZERFIER
EBEEARTHI00EEE  AREE 2
BREEEM B EBET(ZEBAE
E51849361,0008 T) « LIBUBHE DT
BRAXEHRBEHMRSBLELEAR
ERFEZEMIBZRNERABMETE
ZIOOEEH 2 LAATHADIAREERE
HRBET-HREHMRUEPB 2R RGE
ARERBEH 2T E - RO DIRRET
ZERENFHRZEEELT -

Rl B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZERERAQA

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. UBEMEEBHERBK &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES -
continued
Liquidity risk REBELEME
Individual operating entities within the Group AEEBABEKEERQTEAEARAGZHE
are responsible for their own cash management, SEE (BERSBHRIEHREURE
including the short term investment of cash EBEEFRMEFEHRESER) REE 2K
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected RNEHERARDESERURRER
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly CRERLERTE BRHEE TV 2ES
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance #FE UnEEEHRBERPZ2REBES
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains ER o
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables analyses the Group’s remaining TROMAEEERES2REGES N
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. BReZRDBEBEAEHEINeREEZ
The tables have been drawn up based on the ERHHSREEIRITEESAMGER
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay:
At 30 June 2010
R-ZB-ZFXA=1H
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than Over
amounts cash flows  on demands 2 years 5 years 5 years
agh 1545 1840 HHE
REE ARRRLR RERK BoiE BHR5E SENE
HKS$"000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THR THR ThR TER T ThR
Trade payables, BN EEER
accrued liabiliies and ERAE
other payables 35,164 35,164 15,164 20,000 - -
Borrowings &g 87,205 126,000 - - 126,000 -
Convertible bonds TERES 252,672 520,000 - - - 520,000
375,041 681,164 15,164 20,000 126,000 520,000

Rl B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES -

continued

Liquidity risk - continued

At 30 June 2009

R-ZZBZAFANA=

Trode payables,
accrued liabilifies and
other payables
Bank and other borrowings
Convertible bonds

Fair values

+H

ERER BFRER
AfbEAHE

RTRABEE
TRRES

6. HUBEABEEBERBK &
REEEEME-&
Tofal More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than Over
amounts cash flows  on demands 2 years 5 years 5 years
e 1R 1840 L WL
REE ARRRER REXK BHNE BHWSE SENE
HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HKS' 000 HK$" 000 HKS"000
TR TER TER TER TER TER
10,739 10,739 10,739 - - -
36,145 37,853 37,853 - - -
303,244 345,501 - - 345,501 -
350,128 394,093 48,592 - 345,501 -
AT

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2009 and 2010.

FESRTAZREAYREN=SEN
FR-F-BEAASTAZATERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments with effect from 1 July 2009. HKFRS 8
is a disclosure standard that requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (i.e. the board of directors) for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (HKAS 14 Segment Reporting) required an
entity to identify two sets of segments (business and
geographical) using a risks and returns approach.
In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format
was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8
has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s
segments as compared with the primary segments
determined in accordance with HKAS 14. The
factors that used to identify the Group’s operating
segments, including the basis of organization are
mainly based on the types of products sold and
services provided by the Group’s operating divisions
as follows:

Continuing operations

(a) Trading of edible oil and mineral materials

(b) Boxes for storage of deceased cremated ashes
and other ancestral properties

(c) Paper-offering business

Discontinued operations

(a) Gas related

(b) Profit sharing on oil field

Information regarding the above segments is
reported below. Amounts reported for the prior year

have been restated to conform to the requirements
of HKFRS 8.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZEREAERAR A

SEEH

AEEBRATHR=_ZBZTAFELHA—HE
ERNEBUBREEDESREED
B -EBUBRELERESRRE—EAR
BENER  EREESHRIETLER
BA(ESE)RIRERED ERTZ
DERRAENEHNEELEEARETH
ZI*J“B#E“:ﬁ'ﬁiJ c MR - HRTER (F

BETEREIARI 2 ERE]D » BRI
EERRERAN  REBREERSEE
ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁhﬂiED\GZIEiﬁ*
EAAERDE HEREBEFBSTEAE
U EEZEED éﬁ&‘%%éﬁﬁﬁ

HENFESRI BB AEEERRE
DE-UTAARESAEELEDH
HE BREAMCEE  ATERBLE
EgENMHECERRRMZRBENE

AL
(0) BARBUMNHES

(b) AREFEBEEE XLENERREME
ANEYWNFE

(c) BEMREH

ST

(o) MEHE

(b) HEFELER
BEREMERSEMT - BEREZH

FEREY UNESEEBUBHREENE
BIRMER o

RE M RRM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. EEN-E&

(a) Segment revenue and results (o) SEWKERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s REBzWEREEREEDEIW
revenue and results by operating segments: mr

For the year ended 30 June 2010
BE-_Z—ZFAA=1+HLEE

Continuing operctions Discontinued operations
FREERE BRLER
Boxes for
storage of
deceased
cremated
Tradingof ~ ashes ond
edible ol other Paper- Profit
and mineral ancestral offering Gos sharing
materials properties busingss Tofol telated on ol field Toll  Consolidated
R
ST HEL
SRR RE SERG il
WHES  EARMNE £ 3t il AR it 54

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
i1 i1 Thn i1 Thn Ti7 Tin Tix

Seqment revenue: AEkE:
Seles o extemal cusfomers IAREFEE 3760 - - 3760 18323 . 18323 2103
Seqent resufs pLit] ® e () (600) 100 - 100 (00)
Unallocated income FAEHA 1.0 - 1207
Unallocated expenses TRER (32,106) - (32,10)
Finance cosfs it (24.969) (1,015) (25,984)
(Gain on dlisposal of oinly ELREH

controlled eniites ER2UR - 197,707 - 197,707 197,707
(ain on Terminafion of Proff ArARsRERE

Sharing Rights arrangement 2HE 11,081 11,031 11,031
Pro loss) before foxation RRAEN (58 (61,893) 8725 146832

Income fox expenses kR - (17.74) (17,746)

Proit los) for he year REREH (EE) (61,893) 190979 129,086
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. EEN-E&

(a) Segment revenue and results - continued (o) FTEWERFEE-B

For the year ended 30 June 2009
BE_ZZAEARA=ZTHLEE
Confinuing operafions Discontinued operations
FREERE BALER

Boxes for

sforage of
deceased
cremoted
Tradingof ~ ashes and

edible of other Poper- Prof
and minerol ancestral offering 60s sharing
materials properfies business Tofal related on ol field Toll  Consolidated
v
hkhER
) RE HXRR i1
ROMHER  TARNNE ) it HERE HERE &t o

=

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 KS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tin Tin in Tin in Thn in TER

Seqment revenue: AEUE:
Sols fo extemal customers AAREFEE 1829 - - 18,92 106,803 - 106,803 1509
Segment resuls FEEE 1l - - I 10438 @) 10026 10037
Unallocoted income THERA 9 9
Unallocated expenses THERR (48m) (31761) (3663
Finance coss Ei (38984) (5450) (ta438)
Share ofresult Fit-Bae

on associate MHZEE - 14 14
Loss on cisposal of LE-Eh%

an ossociofe MAlEE - 0 0
Loss before foxaton hRigE “8%) () (68907

Inoome fox expenses fiRHRR - (1.489) (1485)

Lossor ey KEEER (018%) &) (0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. EEN-E&

(a) Segment revenue and results - continued (@) HERERESE B

The accounting policies of the operating EESBZEHBEREMEIMitz
segments are the same as the Group's AEBEHBERRD - 2 8EF (B
accounting policies as described in note 3. B)RREDEFREZERN RS
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit ZEEMT|SBIEFLEHRUAR
earned or loss made by each segment without HAEBEERRBER WAL
allocation of incomes or expenses which Z o RITRBWA ~ PRITHHAA -
are not recurring in nature and unrelated to EEHMERBMERT - LAREER
the Group’s operating performance, bank PERRRAZMAETEEERRA
interest income, central administration costs, (BIRQABER)ETERZ A A -

Directors’ emoluments and finance cosfts.
This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker that is the Directors
of the Company for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

(b) Segment assets

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

assets by operating segments:

At 30 June 2010
R=ZB-ZFFXA=+1H

7. YEEN-&

(b) HEAE

Aptu‘s Holdings Limited
MiEERAERLRQA

Rl B

TEBEEREESIBOMWT ¢

Confinuing operafions Discontinued operations
5 LR BALER
Boxes for
storage of
deceased
cremated
Trading of ~ ashes ond
edible of other Paper- Profit
and mineral ancestral offering Gos sharing
materials  properfies business Total related on ol field Totol  Consolidated
R
ST TEL
£AR RE# £¥RR i
BOnHEE  EARNNR i i fRE8 HEAE it &4
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i1 7 TEn 7 7 TE7 TEn TEn
Assefs 4
Segment asses FEEE 1266 10780 414 1073510 1073510
Unallocated ossels ThgEE 6,263 6,263
Totol assets fez 101,713 1009773
Liobiffes af
Segment liobites ik 1) 31,09 5 314 314
Unlocoted liabilfes THEEE 4003 403
Borrowings fg 81,205 81,205 81,205
Converfile bonds ThkER 28267 2267 28672
315,001 315001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. EEN-E&

(b) Segment assets - continued (b) HEHEE-8&

At 30 June 2009
RZBEANFAA=TH
Confinuing operafions Discontinued operations
FRELRR REJESS

Bores for
sforage of
deceased
cremofed

Tradingof ~~ cshes and

edible ol ofher Poper- Prof
and minercl ancestiol offering 6as sharing
materiols properfies businss Total relofed on ol field Total  Consolidofed
RS
MektER
) REf HXRR i
BOMHES  TARNNE ) it #ERE HEME it i

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tin Tin Thn Tin in Tin Thn i

Assels B

Segment asses FEEE 1341 - - 1341 350,193 B9 384120 385,401
Unallocoted assets THEEE 1763 - 1763
Tofol assefs ez 3104 384120 387,24
Liobllfes L

Seqment liabilfies 1588 12 - - 12 123,82 - 123,82 123,947
Unallocated fobiltes ISEEL 16,762 - 16,762

Converfiole bonds ThRES 303,214 - 303,244

30128 123825 473983



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

(b) Segment assets - continued

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources
between segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than, bank balances
and cash and other corporate assets.

The chief operating decision maker mainly
reviews the segment assetfs for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

An analysis of the Group’s liabilities is not
regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker and hence, the relevant
information is not presented accordingly.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZERERAQA

7. YEEN-&

(b) "EEE-&

REESBERAURESIE BB
ERMS  MBEEENIREZEEED
8] ERTESRRESUAREMESE
BEKRS -

FTEEERRATERERDBRT
RREMBREIEEE -

IBEERARALEERRBAE
EEE S EitiE25iEna
Ao

Rl B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. EEN-E&

(c) Other segment information (c) HirsrE&EH
2010
—2-%F
Confinuing operafions Discontinued operations
e HEES BALER

Boxes for
storage of
deceased
cremated

Tradingof ~ ashes ond

edible ol ofher Paper- Profit
and mineral ancestral offering Gos sharing
materials ~ properfies business Total reloted on il field Tolol  Consolidated
R
PSR L
) RE# 1l il
BOnHEE  EARNNR S i fREE HERE it %

HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
A7 A7 iR 7 TEn TE7 TEn TR

Amount includedin the RERELECE]

measure of segment FRERfES

proft orloss or Heg:

segment ossefs:
Adaftons fo property, TENE BR

planf ond equipment Ritf - 60 - 60 - - - 80
Addffons fo properties under YEFE

development - 1,988 - 1,988 - - - 1,968
Depreciafion and fiEREY

omorfizafion - 2 - 2 2109 - 2109 210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. EEN-E&

(c) Other segment information - continued (c) HivnEH&H-&

2009
—E2ENE
Confinuing operafions Discontinued operations
FRELRR BALEE

Bores for
sforage of
deceased
cremofed

Tradingof ~ eshes and

edible ol ofher Poper- Prof
and minercl ancestiol offering 6as sharing
materiols properfies busingss Total relofed on ol field Total  Consolidofed
RS
MektER
) REf AR i
EOMHES  TARNNE 4 it #ERE HEME &t i

HKS 000 kS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
Tin Tin in Thr TEn Thr Thn TR

Amount includedin the RERELECE]

measure of segment FRERfES

proft orloss or Heg:

segment assefs.
Adaifions fo property, FENE HE

plont cnd equipment k3 - - - - 339% - 339% 139%
Depreciafion and fEREY

amorfizafion - - - - 20,185 0 0214 0214
Loss on cisposal of propery, LENE  BER

plont and equipment hEzER - - - - 3 - 3 3
Loss on disposal of an LE-HEENE

associofe bl - - - - 1 - ] ]
Impaiment loss on BRAERE

goodl - - - - 31781 - 31761 31761
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. #$E&% &
(d) Geographical information (d) BEZH
The Group’s operations are mainly located in REBEEFTEVRATPERES
the PRC and South East Asia. oo o
The following table provides an analysis of the THREMHRIBETEHAEFB ZHE
Group'’s sales by geographical markets: oA
Revenue from Revenue from
external customers external customers
RENREF 2 W& RENREF 2 Wi
Confinuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
BESERR BRIEER &4
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZB-%F  CEENE 0 ZB-3Ff ZEZEAF CE-BF 0 CEENE
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000
THER TER TER ThER T#r ThER
PRC hE - - 18,323 106,803 18,323 106,803
South East Asia REE 3,780 18,292 - 3,780 18,292
3,780 18,292 18,323 106,803 22,103 125,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

(d) Geographical information - continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying

amount of segment assets, and additions to

property, plant and equipment analysed by

the geographical area in which the assets are

located:

PRC =8}
Hong Kong 58
South East Asia R

7.

SEEH-&

(d) HEEH-&

BEKRER R A

RE M RRM

UTAREEMEHESNOBEE
ZREEURDE BERREZR
B

At 30 June
RA<B=+H

Carrying amount of

segment assets

Capital expenditure

SEAEZREE £ Fa
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F -TTAF —T-BF —TINF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx  FERT = TFEx 0 FEx
2,511 385,390 - 34,002
1,075,996 493 2,678 1
1,266 1,341 - -
1,079,773 387,224 2,678 34,003
WEEEER RS 2K

Revenue from major products and services

The Group’s revenue from continuing and

discontinued operations from its products were

as follows:

Distribution of edible oil and
mineral materials
Gas related

RRRBEIMEES

RREEH

FEBHERERBROK XY

REERZRFEMT
2010 2009
—s-%% —BENE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR FBR
3,780 18,292
18,323 106,803
22,103 125,095
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER REVENUE 8.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of frading of edible oil and mineral materials,
holding profit sharing right of oil field, sales of gas
and gas appliances, provision of gas transportation

services and installation services for gas connected.

Revenue represents invoiced value of sales, net
of returns, discounts allowed or sales taxes where
applicable. Revenue recognized during the
Financial Year and for the year ended 30 June 2009

are as follows:

W 2 % Iy 2%

FEBZEREZRBRBYUMBES
FERERNBEOERE  HERRERREA
B -RERKERRBURRRER LR

WETDIEHEENBRRE - BR T2
FEXER (REABRME) R2BEF
B -REAFRFERBE-ZZNFAA
EtALFECEIAZRENT :

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated

RRRERY BRLEER &&
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-BF CZZTNF ZB-ZF ZEEhF ZB-BF CZZEINF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
TAR Fhx ThR TER ThR TER

Revenue g
Sales of goods HEEY 3,780 18,292 18,323 74,906 22,103 93,198
Gas transportation RAER - - - 4,301 - 4,301
Installation income for MEERZEWA

gas connection - - - 27,596 - 27,596
3,780 18,292 18,323 106,803 22,103 125,095
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER REVENUE - 8. WmRH Uz —4&
continued
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
RRRERY BRIEER &é
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

-B-%5 -SEAF -%-8F -TEAF -B-%F —FENF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FBL TR TER  TER  FER  FER

Other revenue Hits
Interest income GIEUON 525 6 - 605 525 611
Rental income HEWA - - - 359 - 359
Sundry income HERA 682 8 23 162 705 170
1,207 14 23 1,126 1,230 1,140
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEME
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BEREEY BAILER &é
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-ZF CZEEhF ZE-BF ZEENF ZEB-ZF ZZENF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$* 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT FE TER TER TER TER
Inferest on: FE:
- borrowings wholly -EREEREY
repayable within BEZEE
five years 1,134 2,214 - - 1,134 2,214
- borrowings wholly -BEREFAEY
repayable affer BEZEER
five years - - 1,015 5,454 1,015 5,454
- convertible bonds -ARRES 22,923 34,770 - - 22,923 34,770
- unsecured promissory  —EEFAERFNE
nofe 912 - - - 912 -

24,969 36,984 1,015 5,454 25,984 42,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BB I BS 1R
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
REREEY BALER #a
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“2-%F CERNF ZR-BF ZRENF CE-BF ZETAF
HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HKS$' 000 HK$" 000
TER TER AR TER AR TER

Loss before taxation RHAIEE

has been arrived at BMBUT

affer charging: REREN:
Staff costs (excluding BERA(FEE

Directors emoluments EZHe

-note 11): ~fEn)

- Wages and salaries -T8KH¢ 1,176 770 942 6,818 2,118 7,588

- Retirement benefits - BRBATEER

scheme contributions 24 21 - - 24 21

Total staff costs BEERF 1,200 791 942 6,818 2,142 7,609

Cost of inventories sold EEREZHA

(Note) (M3E) 3,763 18,246 15,585 80,729 19,348 98,975
Audifors' remuneration BEmHE
Audit and audit ERREY
related works HEIHE
- Current year -REE 2,741 506 - 14 2,741 520
- (Over)Underprovision -NEEE (BE
in prior years B RETR (24) 86 - - (24) 86
Depreciation of property, M1 BERRENE
plant and equipment (&)
(Note) 42 17 2,041 19,748 2,083 19,765
Impairment loss on BEZRHERE
goodwill - - - 31,761 - 31,761
Minimum lease payments ~ 2EBRAREZ
under operating leases: RERSE:
- Land and buildings -t RER 234 309 12 101 246 410
Loss on disposal of property, &N BER
plant and equipment HEEE - - - 3 - 3
Amortization of prepaid RAHEREEH
lease payments - - 64 466 64 466
Loss on disposal of HE-BBENT
an associate ZE& - - - 7 - 7
Exchange losses (gains), net EREE (W)  F48 33 (63) - - 33 (63)
Note:Included in the depreciation of approximately MisE : 3T A #2,083,000 B T (ZEEHEF :
HK$2,083,000 (2009: HK$19,765,000) was an amount 19,765,000 T) 2 INEEF 2R —
of approximately HK$1,885,000 (2009: HK$14,990,000) ECEAEFRELHFERLTZEHEY
capitalized in cost of inventories sold during the 1,885,000t (ZEZ N : 14,990,000
year. The amount of approximately HK$1,885,000 HBIT) ° % E#1,885000/8 T (ZEE N
(2009: HK$14,990,000) was included in cost of F 114,990,000/ 7w) 22 BEEFAEH
inventories sold of approximately HK$19,348,000 (2009: FERA#9,348,0008 Tt (ZEZE AN

HK$98,975,000). F 198,975,000/ ) EH °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10
(2009: 8) Directors of the Company during the
year were as follows:

For the

year ended 30 June 2010

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

1N.EEREREEBENE

(o) EEBE
RAEREARELERQT (=
ZEANF ) ESZEAZHEW
T

BE-_Z2-ZEFA AZ=THLEE

Contribution
Salaries  to refirement
and other benefits
Fees  emoluments scheme Total
R BEEA
e Hith & FEHR Mt
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR TR THx THx
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Cheung Kwai Lan (Note 1) REM (1) 24 - - 24
Chan Ting RE 24 - 2 26
Fung King Him Daniel B 24 1,440 12 1,476
Lau Chi Kwong (Note 2) 215 % (HHaE2) - 80 - 80
Lam Wai Pong (Nofe 3) e (MEE3) - 175 6 181
Independent Non-executive BUKHTES:
Directors:
Zhang Xiu Fu (Note 4) RHEX (ME4) 120 - - 120
Tian He Nian (Note 5) mEF (F5) 78 - - 78
Man Fu Wah (Note 6) XE# (fiio) - - - -
Zou Qi Jun BEAK 78 - - 78
To Yan Ming Edmond HER 47 - - 47
395 1,695 20 2,110
Note 1: Madam Cheung Kwai Lan resigned as an Mzl : REEZIR=-Z-—ZSE<A+NEE
executive Director on 18 June 2010. EHITES -
Note 2: Mr. Lau Chi Kwong was appointed as an M2 : BEXEER-S—SE~A+—HAE
executive Director on 11 June 2010. ZEATES -
Note 3: Mr. Lam Wai Pong was appointed as an a3 : MABEER-_ZE-—ZE—HN\BEZR
executive Director on 8 January 2010. TAPITES
Note 4: Mr. Zhang Xiu Fu resigned as an independent Mizd . REXEENR-_ZE-—ZTEXNA=-+=H
non-executive Director on 23 June 2010. BEBLEHITES -
Note 5. Mr. Tian He Nian resigned as an independent M5 : ARFEAER-ZE—ZEXA+N\BH
non-executive Director on 18 June 2010. EBILFPTES -
Note 6: Mr. Man Fu Wah was appointed as an Miz6: XEELEEN_ZTE—FEA+/\BE

independent non-executive Director on 18
June 2010 and subsequently resigned as an
independent non-executive Director on 23
August 2010.

ZERBUFITES  HER-F—
ZEENAZTZHEREBLFHTE
Ho

Rl B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B8R MiaE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 1N.EEREREEEMNS - &
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS -
continued
(a) Directors’ emoluments - continued (o) EEME &
For the year ended 30 June 2009 BE-_SENFEAB=THLEE
Contribution

Salaries  to refirement

and other benefits
Fees  emoluments scheme Total
HER RAEHN
we HittM = SRR st
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TART FET TET TR
Executive Directors; BTES:
Cheung Kwai Lan RER 24 - - 24
Chan Ting RE 24 - 1 25
Fung King Him Daniel B 24 882 12 918
Independent Non- BUEHTES:
executive Directors:
Tian He Nian BEF 78 - - 78
Zou Qi Jun (Note 1) SEA (K1) 63 - - 63
Zhao Zhi Ming (Note 2) 5 (Hr2) 78 - - 78
Zhang Xiu Fu REX 120 - - 120
To Yan Ming Edmond REBR 47 - - 47
458 882 13 1,353
Note 1: Mr. Zou Qi Jun was appointed as an M BEEEER-ZSENFLANAEZ
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 TABIKHITES -
September 2008.
Note 2. Mr. Zhao Zhi Ming resigned as an M2 : HERALEER-ZZTAE~A=+TAH
Independent Non-executive Director on 30 EBIFHTES -

June 2009.
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS -
continued

(b) Senior management emoluments

Of the five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include 2
(2009: 3) Directors whose emoluments are set
out in the above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining 3 (2009: 2) individuals during the
year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
other benefits
Contributions to retirement EIREFIFTEIHK

benefits scheme

The emoluments fell with the following bands:

B < 45 7l
Z-1,000,0005% T

Emoluments bands
Nil -HK$1,000,000

e REURHMER

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZERERAQA

AE MR M

(b) BREEENS

FEBFRAOUGSHFHALTEE
ME(ZEBAF =) ES &
ZEoHMEFBEREN LI - HEf =1
(Z2EAE W) ALTRFERERE

THZMEWT :
2010 2009
—B-%F —EENE
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHET FET
849 746
19 20
868 766
BEeARMT :
No. of individuals
A
2010 2009
—E-%F —EENF
3 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

12. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 12. EEREX (BIE=EMNE)
EMOLUMENTS)

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Consolidated
BEREEE BRILER &8
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

tg-8% CEITAF  CP-%F CTEAF CE-8F CREAS
HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
T#R  TET TR TBR TER  TER

Wages and salaries IERES 3,266 2,110 942 6,818 4,208 8,928
Refirement benefits scheme BBt 25
contributions 44 34 - - 44 34
Total staff costs BEESHA 3,310 2,144 942 6,818 4,252 8,962
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. i8HAX
The amount of tax charged to the consolidated ERGEERBERPHBRZHEHRERE

income statement represents:

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Consolidated
BERERE BRILER g8
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“E-%F  CERNF O CZR-BF ZRENF 0 CE-BF ZRTAF
HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR TERL A TER Fhr TER

Current year REE

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEGH - - - - - -

Other jurisdictions Hit AR - - 17,746 1,485 17,746 1,485
Total tax charged FRREXLAR

for the year - - 17,746 1,485 17,746 1,485
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been HRAEERZMEFELRREBEL
made in the consolidated financial statements as ERBETR > WA RRGEVBERRAE
the Group had no assessable profit derived from BRESHELRE-

Hong Kong for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at HitB i EEE 2B ERREMAERE
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. BBITHETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES - continued 13. BB — &

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company
are exempted from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for
the first two years commencing from their first profit
making year of operation and thereafter, these PRC
entifies will be entitled to a 50% relief from PRC for
the following three years ("Tax Preference”).

Entities that originally enjoy the Tax Preference can
continue enjoying the Tax Preference based on the
original tax rate until after the expiration of the Tax
Preference. Entities that did not start Tax Preference
before 2008 because they were sfill in loss position
shall start the Tax Preference from 2008.

BRETPEEBEERERER A2 ETH
BEfEAREEEEEEFNFERTEW
FRARBPETEREHR  LEZETEH
BERNER =FEEREMS0% 2 HBEI®%E
FREH(HBEEED -

EXREZAHBEE2BRTRERARR
BEZEVBER  EZEBERBEERE
MBI RZBENFHRANRZEER
MAREMREEHRBEEZER  $h=
ZERE\FHEZARBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES - continued 13. BB — &

The amount of income tax expenses charged to the ERGERERPHBRZFAEHBAXIEE
consolidated income statement reconciled to the HESKRBERAEHN (FBE) 2HIROT :
profit (loss) per consolidated income statement is as
follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EERIEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHExT
Profit (loss) before taxation: BRBLAE R (B518) ¢
Continuing operations BESEER (61,893) (41,835)
Discontinued operations BRIEER 208,725 (27.072)
146,832 (68,907)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits REBFESHH =
Tax rate stECHE 24,227 (11,370)
Tax effect of expenses that are FAIHEZZ
not deductible for tax purposes BT E 4,619 12,129
Tax effect of income that is not BERBBA Z
taxable for tax purposes RBEEE (32,121) )
Tax effect of tax losses not REAREBFEZ
recognized R 4,294 3,162
Effect of different tax rates of REMREEEE
subsidiaries operating ZHEAR 2B =R
in other jurisdictions TRz E 16,727 (2,434)
Income tax expenses EHEZ S 17,746 1,485
Note:The applicable tax rate for Hong Kong is 16.5% (2009: Mizt: EBEABERI6E%(ZEBAEF:
16.5%) and applicable tax rate in the PRC is 25% 16.5%) MAAEEAREAB25% (=

(2009: 25%). BAE 1 25%) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES - continued

The components of unrecognized deductible
(taxable) temporary differences at the reporting
date are as follows:

Deductible temporary differences: A1 B =48 :
Unutilized tax losses REARIEFE

Taxable temporary differences: ERBERE
Accelerated tax allowances IR B I %

At the end of the reporting period, the Group have
unused tax losses of approximately HK$29,376,000
(2009: HK$5,969,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respect of the unused tax losses
due to the uncertainty of future profits streams.
Deductible temporary differences have not been
recognized in these financial statements owing to
the absence of objective evidence in respect of
the availability of sufficient taxable profits that are
expected to arise to offset against the deductible
temporary differences. No unrecognized estimated
tax losses are recorded (2009: HK$566,000) that will
expire in 5 years from the year of origination. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

13. B2 -8

RBEBH - RERTHH (BRH) ToF
EEZEMBIUOT -

2010 2009
—E-%F —EENE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
29,376 5,969
(520) -
28,856 5,969

R|EBRR - FEEEARDABEBRY
29,376,000/ T (ZZZ A 1 5,969,000
BT AT AEE SR AOER o R AR R
BARE 2 THEEM WA ERRE AR
HEEBAELEREEE - HRREZFE
RERHERARRTUEN R A AEE
SHATHIB B R =80 - ML BN B HmKE
RANRERZHE LEENELEFER
SEFAISMZAKERAMFHESREA
IR(ZZZNEF 566,000 ) - HALk
BUERBTE -

Rl B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The combined results and cash flows of the

discontinued operations (i.e.: the oilfield sharing

right and the distribution of natural gas business)

included in the consolidated income statement and

the consolidated statement of cash flows are set out

below:

Profit (loss) for the year from
discontinued operations

Revenue

Expenses

Gain on Termination of Profit
Sharing Rights on oil field

Gain on disposal of jointly
controlled entities

Profit (loss) before taxation

Income tax expenses

Profit (loss) for the year from
discontinued operations

Cash flows from discontinued
operations

Net cash inflows from
operating activities

Net cash inflows (outflows) from

investing activities

Net cash inflows from financing

activities

Net cash inflows

14. ERIEEFR

Rl B

UTRFAGERERRESHRERER
Z ORI (A BRI ED EER D #H
AARRER) 2EHEBARRERE -

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
Total Total
mat Bzt
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FHERT FET
BREEBZEFE
A (E8)
gz 18,346 107,929
B (18.359) (135,001)
b m R RDE o B
Al E 11,031 -
HEHLBEHER
2 Wi 197,707 -
FRBLRER (B518) 208,725 (27.072)
FREHEX (17.746) (1.485)
ERLEEBCAREE
A (E518) 190,979 (28,557)
ERIEEKZRERE
REXB2RE
RAERE 4,265 22,925
REXEBZHER
() F8 408,214 (27,686)
RMEXB2HERA
T 2,818 6,355
RERANFHE 415,297 1,594




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets related to the gas
related business classified as
held for sale

Liabilities of the gas related
business associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Net assets of the gas related
business classified
as held for sale

Reserve of the gas related
business classified
as held for sale

Note:The Group entered info an agreement to dispose of its

DEBFEHEZRR
HEXBNEHEEE

DTEABEHECZEEW
MRABBEEBH
EHAE

DERABEHEZRR

HEXENEEFE

DEBEEHEZRR
HEXBHNEE

gas related business in two jointly confrolled entities

on 24 April 2009. The disposal was completed on 10

September 2009 and 11 September 2009, respectively.

The major classes of assefs and liabilities comprising

the operations classified as held for sale at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

15. BEHEZERHEE

2010 2009
—s-%% —BENE
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR 81

- 350,193

- 123,825

- 226,368

- 19,990

e

AEEER=STAFNA=THA
3 AT A R R R 2
TIRBETY - ML ESEE S BN =
FEAFARTER=SFAFAS
A ELE

RBEMR  BREFEHEREZTE
EERBEERNNOT :

Rl B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

15. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE  15. M E>EnoSE-E

- continued
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZEEhF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHEx FHExT
Property, plant and equipment WE BMEREE - 231,819
Construction in progress (Note 21) &I 2 (Ffzk21) - 2,877
Goodwill (Note 20) B8 (H3£20) - 49,454
Prepaid lease payments (Note 22) FE{+#H &K IE (FfzE22) - 15,775
Prepayments, deposits and EARE -EEeRk
other receivables H{h fE R IE - 8,513
Trade receivables FE IR BR FX - 1,181
Inventories 7E - 1,714
Bank balances and cash RITHEERERES - 38,860
Assets related to the gas PEABEEEZ N R IEES
related business classified EBNEBEEE
as held for sale - 350,193
Trade payables e BR R - 4,713
Accrued liabilities and EtEER
other payables H b IR - 9,282
Tax liabilities Bxas - 1,121
Bank and other borrowings IRITRHEMEE - 108,709
Liabilities of the gas related PEABELHEZEEN
business associated with assets MRAEEEKH
classified as held for sale r=l - h=Ri - 123,825
Net assets of the gas related PEABFELHEZRRIEER
business classified as EBNEETFE
held for sale - 226,368
Exchange reserve R - 19,990

Reserve of the gas related business 2 AIFEHE ZRFEE
classified as held for sale EBHRE - 19,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basis earnings (loss) per share

®

FIX

From continuing and discontinued

operations

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss)

per share is based on the Group’s profit

(loss) attributable to the equity holders of

the Company:

Profit (loss) for the year

aftribute to equity holders

of the Company

Number of shares

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic
earnings (loss) per share

Basic earnings (loss)
per share from
continuing and
discontinued operations

() REFERKEEBREALZE
%
BREXER (BE) IRER
ANEREFEABERERG
A (EE)FE
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZEEHhF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FERT
KATBREFEA
EBEz2AEE
SR (&518) 129,051 (70,214)
378 4=
2010 2009
—2-%3F ZEERF
'000 '000
TR TR
AEEREXREF
(B 2EBR
T E
2,019,038 1,760,441
BRELRF (BE)
REFELCEER
REKRILER

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZERERAQA

16. BlREF (EBHE)

(o) BREXRF (BHE)

HK6.39 centsi& 1l

(HK3.99 cents#l)

Rl B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE -
continued

(a) Basis earnings (loss) per share - continued

Q)

iii)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss)
per share from continuing operations
attributable to the equity holders of the
Company is based on the following data:

Annual Report 2010

—E-TEEH

— =

16. BREH (BHE) -8

(o) BREXERF (E5E) &

(i) REFEEEER
ARARRESAEARGRERE
BREEB o BREXBR (6
B)RREUATHETE

el B

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERT THET
Profit (loss) for the year ERARBREFEA
attributable to equity BhzEEE
holders of the Company A (E8) 129,051 (70,214)
Less: (Profit) loss for the year i : RECHKRILEHK
from discontinued ZAREE
operations CaF) B’ (190,979) 28,557
Loss for the purpose of AEREEERE
basic loss per share from EBERER
continuing operations BENES (61,928) (41,657)
Basic loss per share from REBFESEER
continuing operations ZBREXER (HK3.07 cents# )  (HK2.37 centsi&fl)

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share for the Financial
Year from discontinued operations is
HK9.46 cents per share (2009: loss per
share HK1.62 cents), based on the
profit for the Financial Year from the
discontinued operations of approximately
HK$190,979,000 (2009:
discontinued operations of approximately
HK$28,557,000) and the denominators
detailed above for basic earnings (loss)

loss from

per share.

(i) REBKRILEL

AP HREFERBERILEER
ZBRERBFRER.468
W(ZEZ2AF BREER
1.62584L) » Th R 35 A B BR &
EREBEKRLEEBZENH
190,979,000 T (ZZEZE N
F RECREEBZEERY
28,557,000 t) st & - FT A
ZOBREXHMERERER
(B18) Frasdl & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

X

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE -
continued

(b) Diluted earnings (loss) per share

O]

From continuing operations and
discontinued operations

The calculation of diluted earnings (loss)
per share from continuing operations
and discontinued operations is based on
the profit (loss) attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
approximately HK$131,606,000 and the
weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 4,099,038,000 shares, calculated

as follows:

Profit (loss) attributable to the equity
holders of the Company (diluted)

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZERERAQA

16. BRREH (BHE) -8

(b) BREERF (EH)

O]

REFEKEERRCRILERE
%

REBELLEEBREALE
BeERBERA (FHE) DR
BARAREERRESEAE
1535 (B518) £9131,606,000
BTREBR ZMNEFHH
4,099,038,0000% 51 & - sTEH A
KT :

RATRESE ABMGER (&
B) (KE8)

el B

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT FET
Profit (loss) attributable to  RATREZFE A
the equity holders R F (EE8)
of the Company 129,051 (70,214)
Add: Imputed finance costs 1l : AR KR ES
on convertible bonds ZEERERA 2,555 -
Profit (loss) attributable to  RATKBRERZEA
the equity holders EERF (E8)
of the Company (5RE58)
(diluted) 131,606 (70,214)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE -
continued

16. SRREH (BHE) -8

(b) Diluted earnings (loss) per share - continued

(b) SRBERTN (B8 —&
(i) From continuing operations and () REFEKEXBRERLLXE
discontinued operations - continued %1
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

HERZMEFIIE (EEE)

2010 2009
—E-2F —EThEF
‘000 000
TR TR
Weighted average number RAA=+BZ
of ordinary shares LERmAE
at 30 June Fi9 2,019,038 1,760,441
Effect of outstanding RITHEAE
convertible bonds RES2EE 2,080,000 -
Effect of outstanding RITEBERRE
share options a7 - 15,937
Weighted average number EZER
of ordinary shares T (K EE)
(diluted) 4,099,038 1,776,378
Diluted earnings per share BREBERT
from continuing and REFELSEER
discontinued operations RERIEEHK HK3.21 cents& 1l N/ATEH

Diluted loss per share from continuing
and discontfinued operations for the
year ended 30 June 2009 has not been
presented, as outstanding share options
and convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive

effect.

HRERITEZBRER AR
RESERBELE EUI
BE2INBE_FTTNhFARA
STREEEXRBBELESE
BREKLER2BREES
8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE -
continued

(b) Diluted earnings (loss) per share - continued

@i

(iii)

From continuing operations

Diluted loss per share from continuing
operations for the Financial Year and for
the year ended 30 June 2009 has not been
presented, as outstanding share options
and convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive
effect.

From discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operations is HK4.66
cents per share, based on the profit
for the Financial Year from the
discontinued operations of approximately
HK$190,979,000 and the denominators
detailed above for diluted earnings per

share.

Diluted loss per share from discontinued
operations for the year ended 30 June
2009 has not been presented, as the
outstanding share options and convertible
bonds had an anti-dilutive effect.

17. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year

ended 30 June 2010, nor has any dividend been

proposed since the end of the reporting date (2009:

Nil).

Holdings Limited

ERER A

Rl B

16. BRREH (BHE) -8

(b) BREERF (HBE) &

@i

REFHEACEXER

FATA 1 R AT fE 2 BB IR B e v 42

REFER#BELE -

)l i

B2INAURFERBE-Z
ENFERA=ZTHLEFERE
FESEXB 2 BRBEES -

(iii)

KEEKIEER

RECKRLEBZSREBER
Fl AT RA66BA > DRER
MHREFERBERLERKZE
F#9190,979,00058 jt & £ X
RERESRAAFL S

E

HRERITEZBRER A

BRESERBELES
—EEAEAA

E2IBE

3Lz

ZtHLEFERACDKIEER
ZEREEES -

17. 12

BE-Z2-
TRAS AR
AR B (

ZERA=T
RE  H®mEH

—?7

NE R o

Rt FERIE
HA & T SR AT
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% BB RakiE

Furniture Gas Gos
Leasehold  Leasehold and  Computer Office  distribution Motor  storage Other
buildings improvement fitures  equipment  equipment network  vehicles equipment  equipment Total
HEET BEVEEE GRREE  EMRE  BOTRE NRO4ER RE RREHNE  EMRE 3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tén Térn TER Tén Tén T Tén T T TEL
COsT ok
AF 1 July 2008 ZEEN\ELR-B UM - 4 203 10 196,817 3.3 10,93 15,763 21,374
Transferred from construction HEEIREA
in progress (Nofe 21) (K3E20) 640 - 20592 - - 5783 27,015
Additions HE 1 6,133 680 3 165 6,988
Disposal HE - - - - (39) (39)
Eichange realignment EifE @ - (370) 0] 20) 33) (456)
Reclssfied asheldforsole  EFABAZEE (1460) - @B (MY (0919 Qs (48)
At 30 June 2009 ond TEENE
at 1July 2009 AAZTER
“RENE
tA-A U 00 10 - 24
Acquistfon of o subsiciory ~ WE-EHEAR - - 7 3 - - 75
Addtions HE 62 10 60 18 - 540 - 690
Bichonge realignment Ejgg 2 - - - - 2
A} 30 June 2010 “§-%f
ARZTA - 62 54 34 3 540 1,031
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  Z3tHE
AT July 2008 ZEENEEA-B 603 - 3 137 5 19,104 658 1486 1,344 23,368
Charged for the year L3k 521 § 3 ] 16147 b 176 1823 19,765
Eiminated on dlisposol HEREE - - - 3 €
Exchange redlignment ExEe ® (63) @ ® ® 9
Reclossfied os held forsole  ERABARELE  (11) (35,188) (1002) (2,258) @12y w28,
At 30 June 2009 ond TEENE
at 1July 2009 ABZTER
“RENE
tA-A - Y 174 6 - - 09
Chorged for the year EnEE 4 2 0 2 - 14 1Y)
Eichange realignment EjgE 1 - - - - 1
At 30 Jung 2010 Z§-%f
ABZTA - 4 4 195 8 14 262
NET BOOK VALUES o
At 30 June 2010 ZE-8%
ABZTA - 58 13 149 3 526 769
At 30 June 2009 “EENE
AE=TH - - 5 % 4 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in an

associate

Share of result of an associate

Disposal

At 30 June

The Group had interest in the following associate:

Name of entity
({51!

Linli Huayou Gas
Co., Limited

BRERRR
BRAR

Form of
business
structure
ERRRRESA

Limited liability
company
BREMLAR

19. RBtEAT 2R

ERER A

Rl B

2010 2009
—ZE-ZfF ZEEIF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FHERT FHET
R—EBE AR Z
RERK - 1,889
i —EBE AR 2 ¥E - 124
HE - (2,013)
ANA=+H - -
AEBRUTHEARBEERER !
Proportion of
nominal value
of registered/
issued capital
held by the Group
REBBEZEM/
BRTRE
Place of Principal AEZEA
registration/ place of Class of 2010 2009 Principal
incorporation operation capital ZE-ZECBENE activities
ER/ZRMRIMY FELEHY BRAEH % % TEXH

PRC
HE

PRC Registered
HE i

Distribution of
natural gas
PERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - 19. REBZEATI 2R - &
continued
Summarized financial information in respect of the AREEBRENTZ2HBERMENT :

Group’s associate is set out below:

From
1 July 2008
to date of
disposal
—EENF
2010 +tBA—B%
—E-ZF HERE
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FEx FHERT
Total assets mEE - 9,542
Total liabilities wae s - (973)
Net assets EEFE - 8,569
The Group's share of an AEBEEL—RBEE AT
associate’s net assets ZEEFE - 2,013
Revenue W 2= - 1,719
Profit for the year AEERF - 526
The Group's share of results of AEEEL—EEE QA
an associate ZHEE - 124
In November 2008, Changde Joint Venture disposed R-BENF+—A BEEEEQATUA
of its equity interest in Linli, at a consideration of R#3,650,000t 2 REHEHREREZ
RMB3,650,000. BAESR o
Loss on disposal of an associate of approximately AEEHHHE—RBBEQARZEERY
HK$7,000 was shared by the Group. Up to the date 70008 T -EEHERE-AH  &~&
of disposal of Linli, the Group shared Linli's profit of BREZ-ZEZNFARA=ZTHLEFERE
approximately HK$124,000 during the year ended 30 1hHR8 2 &4 %124,000/8 T ©

June 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

20. GOODWILL 20. /&
HK$’ 000
FERT
COST R
At 1 July 2008 —E2ENEtLA—H 84,576
Reclassified as held for sale BN ERABFLE
(Note 15 and Note 31(a)) (M3EE15R FIEE31(a)) (49.454)
At 30 June 2009 and at 1 July 2009 —EZAERA=ZTHEK
—ZEZFhF+LA—H 35,122
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31(b)) W iE — R B B A | (B EE31 (D)) 904,550
At 30 June 2010 —E-FEHFXA=1+H 939,672
IMPAIRMENT PROVISION WERE
At 1 July 2008 —EENFLA—H 3,361
Impairment loss recognized for the year FRERAZHEESSE 31,761
At 30 June 2009, 1 July 2009 and —EZTAFEANA=TH"
at 30 June 2010 —ZZhAFELA-HK
—E-ZEFXA=1+H 35,122
CARRYING VALUES WREE
At 30 June 2010 —E-ZFXA=1H 904,550

At 30 June 2009 ZEENFARA

+H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

20. GOODWILL - continued 20. HE -4

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment
in the financial year in which the acquisition takes
place, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired.

For the year ended 30 June 2010, addition of
goodwill was arisen from acquisition of Casdon
amounted to approximately HK$904,550,000.

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group
recognized an impairment loss of HKSNil (2009:
approximately HK$31,761,000).

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
year. Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGUs. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market.

The Directors of the Company considered Casdon
as a CGU based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 12-year period, and
a discount rate of 18.1%. The Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the goodwill
arising from the acquisition of Casdon is recoverable
and impairment provision is considered not

necessary.

AEESFAABETRBZIURFE
ZEHEBRE METSKERHETREDH
B AIEERAERE-

REBZ-_Z-—FFAA=+HLFEE K
B8 CasdonfE 4 & 4 g £ 49904,550,000
BT e

RBE-ZE-ZEFAAZtHLFEE &
EERABMESEZEBLT (CREAE
#31,761,000% 7T) °

REE4AENzARESEDREERE
BEFEEMEE - EREEFAEEZEE
BRDFRAZFTRER - BRERFEHEE
SRHREERAS  EEEEATRBRE A
TEHENREEEZTIMRASELE
NZBERBZBATREGINEE -
EEZEHREERANIZUEEMRE
HHmESRARHNRACEHREE-

AAREERBEEEERBMEE T —F
BB EEEUARIBISZITREMR
CosdonB—EREEEEN - AAFE
ERABWECosdonFTIEEZEHE BTN
WE - WA B EEHRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

22.

At 1 July

Additions

Transferred to property, plant
and equipment (Note 18)

Exchange realignment

Reclassified to held for sale
(Note 15)

At 30 June

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

At 1 July

Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 31(b))

Exchange realignment

Less: Charged to consolidated
income statement
for the year
Reclassified to held for sale
(Note 15)

At 30 June

Analysis for reporting purposes:

Non-current portion
Current portion

At 30 June

+tA—H
wE

BERENEX BER

=8 (MiEE18)
AR

EHNDEARARELE

(&E15)

RB=+H

+tA—H

=
WE—-EHELR
(M¥zE31 (b))
ELAR

B FERARGERERR

Mkz 28

EFOERFELHE

(M¥zE15)

AA=+H

{ Mo
D W
=

i Y &
5

@
B

$®x

<AB=+H

21. #8IE

AE MR

22. A HEERIE

2010 2009
—2-2% —EThE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Fi# Fis
- 6,912

- 22,994

- (27.015)

- (14)

- (2.877)

2010 2009
—E-%F —EENE
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHERT FHET
- 15,954

- 316
143,872 -

- (29)
143,872 16,241

- (466)

- (15,775)
143,872 -
139,984 -
3,888 -
143,872 -
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22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - continued 22 FE{t#HERIE-E&

The amount represented medium-term land use SHEANUREBzhHLERE(ZF
rights situated in Hong Kong (2009: land use rights ZAE  URFPEHzIHFERARERETE
situated in the PRC and premises under operating KEBEET 2ME) -

leases in the PRC).

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  23. FEUGBRZ R H b FEWERIE L &

PREPAYMENTS HHARIE
2010 2009
—E-EfF —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FET
Trade receivables FE U BR R 10 -
Other receivables and Hi W REBERBARIE
prepayments 5,742 34,995
5,752 34,995
Trade receivables, which generally have credit ERERBEEETBBISORZEEN
terms of not more than 180 days, are recognized WiZE B ZEBEMT TN E HEEE
and carried at original invoiced amount less an MEZARIER EWEEHBRELRBAIT
allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An BF > BIEfAETRIR o RN B L BTSN -
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection
of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts
are written off as incurred.
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEHLF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables FE T BR X 10 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful W EWRRRRE
receivable - -

10 -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  23. FEWBRE: R H b REU SR IE LI &

PREPAYMENTS - continued BfRIE-E
An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables at TEBRBREHARBERNTER BB ZE
the end of the reporting period, based on the date WBR BRI DT T

of goods delivered is as follows:

2010 2009

—E-EF —EENF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHExT FET

Current to 90 days BNHI ZE90K - -

91-180 days 91—180X 10 -

Over 180 days 180K M £ - -

10 -

The trade receivables with carrying amount of REBENAI00008T (ZEENE T

approximately HK$10,000 (2009: HK$Nil) are neither B 2 BWIEERARRA B EE A

past due nor impaired at the reporting date. Y IR EE

The Group has policies for allowances of bad and AREE 2z RERBEBERTIRE W EFIE

doubtful debts which are based on the evaluation HEZAMRIRBZRE DN WRIEE

of collectibility and age analysis of accounts and on BEEHEESEEF2EREE - K¥ M
the management’s judgement including the credit B E W R 85 2 FI -

worthiness, collaterals and the past collection history
of each customer.



Aptus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010
BEEREAERA A — T - EER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B8R MiaE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  23. FEWBRE: R H b REU SR IE LI &

PREPAYMENTS - continued

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful
debts:

Balance at the beginning F4ER
of the year

Reversal of bad and doubtful debts # 2 R £ iR

Exchange adjustments BN

Reclassified as parts of disposal
group of assets held for sale

Balance at the end of the year FHRER

In determining the recoverability of the tfrade
receivables, the Group considers any change in the
credit quality of the trade receivables from the date
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
The trade receivables past due but not provided for
were either subsequently seftled as at the date of
this report or no historical default of payments by the
respective customers. The concentration of credit
risk is limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated. Accordingly, the directors believe
that there is no further credit provision required in
excess of the allowance for bad and doubtful debts.

The fair value of the Group’s trade receivables as
at 30 June 2010 approximates the corresponding

carrying amount.

ENDEAFELHEZ
HEEEA RN ED

EfRIE-&

RERBBE 22

2010 2009

= —EENE

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

F#x FET

- 856

- (100)

- 46

- (802)

REEERET W E YRR - AEEEZ
EEEFEERARHPMEEEREAMA
Ik BRRRZFEEZEEREETAE
BoCAMENRBRZERERRAEER
RABESEHNCRECREEETFBHE
YWEXRTCE AREFEREZATF
ZELEEE  REEETABRER - B
It ESRABATRBRBEUIMED
BIMEERME -

FEBR-ZE-ZFAA=THZEWE
Rz A FEEHREEMES
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  23. FEUMBR S R H i FEW R IE LI &
PREPAYMENTS - continued FEftskia— &

FRAEARE RERHEMERNRIEZSE
BLAETEHFEHHE 2EBREBEM
REB T (ZZEFAF 1 434,000,000%

Included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are prepayments for the drilling
operation of Xin Jiang Qilfield in the PRC of HKS$Nil

(2009: approximately HK$34 million). JT) °
24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24 X P Y%
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHExT FHET
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y B — R Bt 1 A |
(Note 31(b)) (HEE31(b)) 13,902 -
Additions "E 1,988 -
At 30 June ANA=+H 15,890 -
25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. SRITHEHERBE S
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEHLF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHExT
Cash and bank deposits LTFHERINBEZRER
denominated in: IRITFEN
Hong Kong dollar BT 5,200 610
Renminbi AR 2,482 39
United States dollar Ep 1,079 1,141
Singaporean dollar F 3K 7T 169 200
8,930 1,990

EFRAERTEEAEEFRR T EE
RETUARBHEZRTERDOS
2,482,000/ T (ZZZ N F 1 £939,000/8
7T) HREESEHPEARINEZTE
B SN B B 2 R

Included in the balance was approximately
HK$2,482,000 (2009: approximately HK$39,000),
representing bank deposits denominated in
Renminbi placed with banks in the PRC by the
Group. The remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.



Aptus Holdings Limited
MBZRERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Report 2010

T T HEFH

AE MR

26. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. FEftBRZ: - ESHHEBERHEbIE

AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables FEBRR
Accrued liabilities and other

payables

Analysed for reporting purposes as: WM = DS :

FRBEE
REBRE

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date
of goods and services received, is as follows:

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

90K KA
90K K £

The fair value of the Group’s trade payables,
accrued liabilities and other payables as at 30 June
2070 approximates to the corresponding carrying
amount.

B EREMENTIEA

RN
2010 2009
—e-%% —EThE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHT
27 105
35,137 10,634
35,164 10,739
2010 2009
—2-2% —EThE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHT
20,000 -
15,164 -
35,164 -

FEBRBEHRRBUNEDR R B
B BNRFREOMUT :

2010 2009
—g-%% —EEAE
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
FHR TR
27 105

27 105

FEER-Z-ZFEXA=THZENEK
Mo EFEERAEMREZATER

HEREEHES -
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26.

27.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES
AND OTHER PAYABLES - continued

Notes:

Other payables included an amount of HK$30,000,000
which represents deposits received for sales of boxes for
storage of deceased cremated ashes and other ancestral
properties. The Group has a profit sharing arrangement
with customers in sharing not less than 50% profit from the
sales of first 3,000 unit of boxes after proportionally realizing
the deposits received as revenue. The non-current porfion
of deposits received of approximately HK$20,000,000
represents the fair value of the Directors’ best estimate of
the future inflows of economic benefits that will be realized
as revenue under the Group’s sales plan and recent
demand for storage of deceased cremated ashes and
other ancestral properties in Hong Kong.

BORROWINGS

Other borrowings HiEE

Promissory note SN

Secured loans (note a) FEAER (MfEa)
Unsecured loans (note b) EIKRE R (M aEb)
Unsecured promissory note IR R ZE (KisEce)

(note ©)

(a) Borrowings is interest bearing at 2-3% over prime
rate, secured by corporate guarantee from
China Vanguard, a holding company of the
Company.

(b) Borrowings is unsecured, bears interest at prime
rate.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZERERAQA

26. EITERRR - BB AR H thFE

=18 — 4&
Bt 5E

HENRACRHEARTREE XR
WBRRAMEANEY 2EMBBRNES
30,000,000/ T - AEBEEE F A FH 2 &
ZH REWBZRERUABERA KSR &
75 & 15 $5 & & 3, 00018 78 2 R B #950% - B W&
2 I MEBEL D £ 520,000,000 7T - AR
EESRBEASEZHEABUREBONEE
W E R BN BRMEMMENED 2 FH
ER MBETERZUERTRZRREE
MERA ZRERFTHDFE

27. B &

2010 2009
—e-2% —BENF
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHT

- 36,145

87,205 -
87,205 36,145
2010 2009
—g-%F —BENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHT

- 16,500

- 19,645

87,205 -
87,205 36,145

(o) BEBETUREEFR R MN2-3%5t
B YUARLDTZERARDVBE RN
iRt 2 2B EREER -

(b) FRABEREER  UKEER R

Bo

AE MR
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27. BORROWINGS - continued 27 EE - &

(c) Unsecured promissory note of HK$87,205,000 is (c) 87,205,000/ T =z & iK #HE AT EH
unsecured, repayable in one lump sum on the KM ARBTRB(ZE—Z2F
date falling three years from its date of issue (27 BEA-t+LEH)BHB=FE2ZA—%
May 2010) and bears no interest. BEERFFE -

Unsecured
promissory
note
BIERANR
HK$’ 000
FET
Principal sum on date of issue RETEHZARNEEHE 130,000
Fair value adjustment REBITABRZ A FERE
at the issuance date (39.707)
At initial recognition RERER R 90,293
Imputed finance cost HEERE KA 912
Repayment B (4,000)
As at 30 June 2010 R-ZE—ZFXA=+H 87,205
Effective interest rate BIRFI=E 13.45%
Borrowings are repayable EEZERHNT :
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EEAEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHEx FHET
On demand or within one year BERF—F X - 36,145
In more than one year but —FUEEEREBME
not more than two years - -
In more than two years but MEULERBBRESF
not more than five years 87,205 -
87,205 36,145
Less: Amount shown under W SIMEERBEEZ
non-current liabilities -l (87.205) -
Amount shown under JERBEB 2L

current liabilities - 36,145
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(a) Convertible bonds |

On 22 November 2006, the Company issued
convertible bonds due on 21 November 2011
with a principal amount of HK$234,000,000,
which is with a gross yield at 11% per annum,
calculated in a semi-annual basis. The
convertible bonds were issued for the purpose
of the acquisition of a 48.33% equity interest in
the Changde Joint Venture, 33% equity interest
in the Hunan Joint Venture and general working
purposes.

On 28 August 2009, the Company and Evolution
Master Fund Ltd. SPC, Segregated Portfolio
M ("Evolution”) have entered into a deed of
undertaking as follows:

(a) in consideration of the undertaking
given by the Company referred to in
paragraph (b) below, Evolution irrevocably
and unconditionally undertakes to the
Company that it will not exercise ifs
conversion right under the convertible
bonds; and

(b) in consideration of the undertaking given
by Evolution referred to in paragraph (a)
above, the Company irrevocably and
unconditionally undertakes to Evolution
that when the redemption amount is
available for redemption, it will be applied
fo redeem the convertible bonds.

On 15 January 2010, the sole beneficial owner
issued a put exercise notice requiring full
redemption of the convertible bonds in the
outstanding principal and any unpaid and
accrued interest.

The fair value of the liability component of the
convertible bonds is estimated by computing
the present value of all future cash flows
discounted using prevailing market rate of
interest for similar instrument with a similar
credit rating and with consideration of the
convertible bonds. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity component
is credited to the Company’s reserve account.

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

RE M RRM

28. Tk ix & &%
(o) TTRIREH

RZBEXREF+—HA=+=H &2
ABRTR=E——F+—-HA=+—
H 38 - &£ %85234,000,0005% T
ZABRES BREAEEN%
(R¥FEEEFE) - BTUTRRES
DhERBEESE AT 248.33%MK
B HmEE DT 233%REURIE
—REEAR-

RZZBZEAFNAZFTNR X2
T EdEvolution Master Fund Ltd.
SPC, Segregated Portfolio M
(TEvolution ]) AT AGEZZYE - 5L

(@) EBERQATMEL T (b)RFAT
2R E - EvolutionB &
A HE R EFEEHEAD T
AE O EBTETFETRRE
SETZBRERE R

(b) fEHEvolutionf i £ 32 (a)RER
2 FFENAE - RABRERT
AT B & & 4& 4 3 @ Evolution
AEE - RS FE A AR EE
HERAREEARRES

R-®-ZE—B+EA  B—Ex
FAARERETEEN - ERER
WS TR % 2 R B S R
REMBRHZRE -

ARBRESFEENI 2AFE  TIF
AECTA (ETRREFFHEL
ZEEFRARRE) 2RTTHF R
MRAEMAERRRERBZHME -
Fer R (NERID 2EE) FFA
KRB 2 EBIR -
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued

(@)

(b)

Convertible bonds | - continued

The Directors had assessed the fair values of the
early redemption rights and considered the fair
value is insignificant.

The convertible bonds have been spilt between
the liability and equity components as follows:

Nominal value of convertible BT ARES
bonds issued ZHE

Equity component BB

Liability component at the RETAPZAEES
issuance date

Interest paid 2 FIE

Imputed finance costs HEEREMRK

Early redemption RATEE

Non-current liability RI|EBHRZ
component at the end FRBEEIHD

of the reporting period

Convertible bonds I

On 27 May 2010, the Company issued
convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$850 million as part of the consideration to
acquire Casdon (the "Casdon Bonds”). The
Casdon Bonds were denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, unsecured, transferrable and
interest-free. The Casdon Bonds entitled the
holders thereof to convert the Casdon Bonds,
in whole or in part, info ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.25
per share during the period from the date of
issue to 27 May 2016 (the "Maturity Date”). The
Company also has the option to redeem all or
any of the outstanding Casdon Bonds at any
time prior to the Maturity Date, at par.

B

28. ATRIR A S -8

(@)

)

(b)

TR LS
EBCGERABEMZATE
RAHATELFEER -

TRRES TS BUT BERESH
4

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EE2NE
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
234,000 234,000
(10,712) (10,712)
223,288 223,288
(5.850) (5.850)
106,174 85,806
(323,612) -

- 303,244

BE:Y A

R-ZZE—ZFHEA=++tAH  &xAF
B {7 R €& %85 850,000,0005% jT 2
BRES  UXFKRECasdonz i
7R & ([ CasdonfE% 1) - Casdon
BEHFUBTHE  &EA - TEER
%E o CasdonfBH 2B A TR E
THHEZEZ_ZE—-—XR"EHEA=-+t
B(TZE A LHREZESR0.25E
T2 R B A& CasdonfE % & 2P &6
HEBRBEAANTZEBR - XAFN
ARERAHAMNEMEEZEEE
5] 2 EBE (1A 1 K BB 2 Casdonf&
%o

AE MR
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued 28. O[iRXEH — B
(b) Convertible bonds Il - continued (b) Tk EHI-&
The Casdon Bonds contained 2 components, CasdonfE# B EEBEREZRM D
namely liability component and equity 7 BERDZERFENER12.97
component. The effective interest rate for the B o

liability component is 12.97% per annum.

The convertible bonds have been spilt between ARRESA S AUTEBERERI
the liability and equity components as follows: %

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FTET FET

Nominal value of convertible B3{TAI#RKRES
bonds issued ZHE 850,000 -
Equity component R (440,085) -

Liability component at the RETAHZEESS

issuance date 409,915 -
Conversion to ordinary shares i & iE K (159,798) -
Imputed finance costs HE R E KA 2,555 -
Non-current liability RIREBRZ

component at the FRBEEDD

end of the

reporting period 252,672 -
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Changes in the share capital of the Company

during the year ended 30 June 2010 were as follows:

(i) The Company allotted and issued 10,525,000,
6,070,000 and 2,075,000 shares of HKS$0.01
each for cash at the exercise prices of HK$0.08,
HK$0.147 and HK$0.1006 per share respectively,
as a result of the exercise of share options.

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. g &
Number of
Note shares HK$ 000
M BB FEx
Authorized: EE
At 1 July 2008, 30 June 2009 RZZEZENELBE—-H"
1 July 2009 and “EZhERA=ZTAH
30 June 2010 shares of “EZAELA-BR
HK$0.01 each “E-ZHEXA=TAH-
SREMEC.01BTZRA 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At T July 2008 R-ZEENFELHE—H 1,744,391,428 17,444
Shares issued on exercise BREETERRTZRD
of options 18,450,000 184
At 30 June 2009 and RZZETAFEAA=ZTAHR
at 1 July 2009 “EZAELBE—H 1,762,841,428 17,628
Shares issued on exercise BRERTERRTZ
of options B3 (i) 18,670,000 187
Placing of shares EERH (i) 160,000,000 1,600
Subscription of shares RBRAD (iii) 122,160,000 1,222
Issue of shares on conversion T} & % IR i
of convertible bonds BIT2RM (@iv) 1,320,000,000 13,200
At 30 June 2010 R-ZBE-ZEEXA=1+H 3,383,671,428 33,837

RBEZZ-ZFAAZtHLFE &
RAREZ2ZFHUWT :

() BRITEBERE  ~2FAIFESRE
£0.08/% 7t ~ 0.1473 5t % 0.1006%
T2 AT EE R 3 & #4710,5625,000
IR ~ 6,070,000/ 2,075,000/ &
REEC.OTEB T ZRM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

29. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 29. l&x —1&

(i) On 2 November 2009, the Company entered (i R=ZBZThE+—-—B=H KA F
info a placing agreement for placing YIREMZ REREERHG
160,000,000 shares to independent investors 0BTz BHRABLKREELRE
at a price of HK$0.25 per placing share. The 160,000,000/ & 7 - ZBEREE R
placing was completed on 10 December 2009. —EFENRE+-A+HER

(i) On 1 December 2009, the Company (i) R=ZBBAE+=A—HB  KQTFH
entered into a subscription agreement with MBRBAGARBEDE  SAQT
two subscribers by capitalizing the loan FEASF R 88 A 938,750,000 7T 2
of approximately HK$38,750,000 owed by ERBRER - BREXMLER=Z
the Company to the subscribers. The loan EhE+=ZBA+ABRERK
capitalization was completed on 16 December
2009.

(iv) The Company allotted and issued 1,320,000,000 (iv) ERRESBRR - AD0EEE N
shares of HK$0.01 as a result of conversion of 171,320,000,0008% 3 B2 E {850.01 8
convertible bonds into shares. 2B e

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. B BRHE LT &I

The Company currently operates a share option AATEBEE—ENRN_-_ZZE_F1A

("Options”) scheme (the “Scheme”), which is THOEERZERE (TBERED T8 (5

effective on 14 May 2002, for the purpose of 2 EEnEES2EMBERASS Y

providing incentives and rewards to the eligible AHAEEFEHERM2EERSHEERE M

participants who, in the sole discretion of the Board, HERER -

have contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 30. EBixtEsteEl—-&

The maximum number of unexercised Options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of the approval of the Scheme or the date of the
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under
the Scheme. The limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted under the Scheme must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to fime. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the Scheme to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the number of shares of the Company in issue at
any fime.

The offer of a grant of the Options may be accepted
in writing within 21 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HKS$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
Options granted is determined by the board of
directors, and shall not be more than ten years from
the date of the grant of the Options. The Scheme
does not require a minimum period for which the
Options must be held nor a performance target
which must be achieved before the Options can be
exercised.

The subscription price will be determined by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the Options; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five frading
days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the Options; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

B RESAESTTFREMERITEZR
REZESHE HER (EHBTEE)
HEFTEEBLEHRTEZI0%RBEZR
RASEBARQRAEBITRNZ10% H
TERERBEAREMERTEZBR
EETRTROBERE  TEHHEAXNX
RETEFCBITRM 230% - sFERNZE
SERSEEMEMTI2(8 A BAREET S
AERTROZESHEATBEBARAF
MRS HITROBE 21%-

BTBREZEZS  TRREZEZAHE
2QIHNHARAZARBEAEL 1B
BRUBERAER -CREZBREZT
EHREZSHEE  HREAREBREZ
RETEEBTH -HBUEREARFH
BRECRENR  TERERBREE
TEAAZERRAER -

ARESHESEES  BRSEROK
HRE R PR R W E
(i) 2 B AR 49 30 B2 45 L AR 4 R
AEXSEEBRFFIRTE: &
(HRIELAWEADRS 2 HE UABS
ERE)
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 30. EBixtEsteEl—-&

During the year, no (2009: Nil) Options were granted RER AAFAUEAETEEKSHE
to certain eligible participants and 18,670,000 (2009: EHERE(ZEZENE 8) BaAE
18,450,000 Options) Options, which were granted in EHEH 218,670,000 ERE(=ZZZH
previous years have been exercised. % 1 18,450,00017 BE BR #E) B AT ©
Details of movements in the Options held by eligible CERZHEHESEAECEREZSBFEBN
participants are as follows: ™

Lapsed/
Exercise Granted cancelled Exercised Exercise
2010 Eligible Date of price*  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding period of
participants grant HKS ot 1/7/2009 the year the year the year  at 30/6/2010 Options
RZBENE R-%-%8f%
ZB-%f% e tA-H Friu/ AA=TH BRE
RERSHE RHAH B W RTE EREH i AT WRTE s
1/11/2004 0.1006 2,075,000 - - (2,075,000) - 1/11/2004 fo
30/10/2009
30/9/2004 0.147 6,070,000 - - (6,070,000) - 30/9/2004 to
297972009
10/9/2004 0.08 10,525,000 - - (10,525,000) - 10/9/2004 to
9/9/2009
18,670,000 - - (18,670,000) -
Lapsed/
Exercise Granted cancelled Exercised Exercise
2009 Eligible Date of price*  Outstanding during during during  Oufstanding period of
participants grant HKS ot 1/7/2008 the year the year the year ot 30/6/2009 Options
RZBENE RZZEBnF
ZEENE ke’ tA-8 EREH/ ~AZtH Bhe
RERSEE RHAH B HARTE FRid EE FRfE BT T8
1/11/2004 0.1006 20,525,000 - - (18,450,000 2,075,000  1/11/2004 fo
30/10/2009
30/9/2004 0.147 6,070,000 - - - 6,070,000  30/9/2004 fo
297972009
10/9/2004 0.08 10,525,000 - - - 10,525,000  10/9/2004 to
9/9/2009

37,120,000 - - (18,450,000) 18,670,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.

TR ER A A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

* The exercise price of the Options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The exercise in full of the Options resulted in the
issue of 18,670,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company at additional share capital of HK$186,700
and share premium of approximately HK$1,756,335
(before issue expenses).

At 30 June 2010, the number of shares in respect
of which Options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the scheme was Nil% (2009:
1.06%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

The risk-free interest rate represents the yields to
maturity of respective Hong Kong Exchange Fund
Note as at 20 March 2006.

The Group recognized the total expenses of HKSNIl
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (2009: Nil) in
relation fo Options granted by the Company.

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company has no (2009: 18,670,000
Options) Options outstanding under the Scheme.

30. fE iz #E=t 8l -

* RERFARBITRAQNTRAHR A
BHUSHN BREZTEERSHFLEA

o

EHTEBERESERLIQFEINRT
18,670,000 & @R - #L N AR Z<186,700
BT R RIEEN1,756,335% 7T (KRR
BITHAX)

R-ZE—ZFXA=+AH HFETER
HmORITEZBRESR 2ROBEE
ERZEHMARRACBRITROZER(ZF
ENE 1 1.06%)

BERBRARER-Z2EAF=A=-1THME
BEBNEESRE ZIHEIHRE

AEEBRBZ-_Z—ZFX<A=1+HILLHF
ERAQRARE2ERERIREAIHESR
T(ZEZNE &) -

REEZSEMBH/RR 2B - AQXFRE
ETYERTEZERE(ZEEAF
18,670,000 #& fR #) -

AE MR
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31. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of jointly controlled entities

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the Company

disposed investments in jointly confrolled

entities, Changde Hauyou Gas Co.,

Limited

("Changde Hauyou”) and Hunan Huayou

Natural Gas Transportation and Distribution

Company Limited (*Hunan Hauyou"). Details of

the disposal was summarized as follows:

NET ASSETS DISPOSED

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill (Note 20)
Construction in progress
Prepaid lease payments
Inventories

Trade receivables, deposits,

prepayments and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Trade payables, accrued
liabilities and other payables

Tox liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Net assets
Less: Release of translation reserve
Gain on disposal

Total consideration

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash

FtEvEEFE
ng BERR
8 (H320)
EEIR
BEMEEHRE
7
ERER e AAFER
Hith kB
RITEFRRS
ERER  EifE8ER
Hit BB
HESE
ROREMEE

FEE
B BRAERE
HEWRE

BRE

REEMELEZRERAFE

RERE
RTEERRS

Aptus Holdings Limited
AEERERA A

3. RE&RERMEE

(o) HEXAREHNER

VA

(F}EH@EE;EHJ Z?xﬁ o HEEHEZH
BT

Changde Hunan
Hauyou Hauyou Total
BEER WEER it
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TER TER
111,868 116,864 228,732
26,227 23,227 49,454
3,886 - 3,886
13,513 2,199 15,712
1,504 576 2,080
9.779 317 10,096
35,459 3,838 39,297
(11.987) (3.674) (15,661)
(1,162) 4n (1,203)
(15.114) (91.791) (106,905)
173,973 51,515 225,488
(14,220) (5.770) (19.990)
129,756 67,951 197,707
289,509 113,696 403,205
289,509 113,696 403,205
(35.459) (3,838) (39.297)
254,050 109,858 363,908

AE MR
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31. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31.IR&RERMT &

continued

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (b) WHEMIBAT
For the year ended 30 June 2010, the REBE-Z-ZEFXA=1+HLHF
Group acquired 100% equity interest in B ANEBELLE1,045,293,0008 T
Casdon at a consideration of approximately ZREWECasdonz100%k% 4 &
HK$1,045,293,000. %o
Set out below is the details of Casdon upon LT ERKESEESTRKBCasdon>
completion of the acquisition and goodwill of HBURRZERGFRE2EEY
approximately HK$904,550,000 was recorded in 904,550,000 it °

these transactions respectively.

Fair value
NFE
HK$'000
FERT
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED KRBz EESRE
Property, plant and equipment U BERREE 75
Prepaid lease payments FEAEERIE 143,872
Properties under development BREPYE 13,902
Trade and other receivables and FE U BR R R H Ath R W R 1B
prepayments PSSR RS 16,121
Bank balances and cash WITHEFEREAS 18
Trade payables, accrued liabilities BAERR - EitAER
and other payables H {th A FUIR (30,843)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (2.402)
140,743
Goodwill arising on W EE

acquisition (Note 20) Z B2 (KMfa£20) 904,550

Total consideration HRE 1,045,293



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
continued

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary - continued

SATISFIED BY

Cash

Fair value of secured promissory
note (Note i)

Fair value of unsecured promissory
note

Issuance of convertible bonds

Net cash outflow arising on
acquisition:

Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash acquired

Net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary

ZNAFR
Be
BEFANEZDTE
(B &ED
BERAERNRZATVE
BRITHRRES
WEEEZRERHFHE:
RENRE
FBBzZRTEERRE

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

Rl B

S.IRERERME &

(b) WEEMIBAS-&

Fair value
AFE
HK$'000
FHExT

85,000

20,000

90,293
850,000

1,045,293

85,000
(18)

FREBRE-EANBARZRER

RESEEENR

Note i: On 27 May 2010, secured promissory note
of HK$20,000,000 was issued as part of
consideration for the acquisition of Casdon.

The promissory note was secured by 100%

of the issued share capital of Good United

Management Limited, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Aptus Holdings Limited. The

secured promissory note was fully settled

before 30 June 2010.

FE

B &E -

84,982

R-ZZE-ZFREA=-++tH &
A 8] #1720,000,000% T 2 B IK
HEMSRERWECasdonz &b
HRE - BRAALSERUAKRAR
22 &M B2 "Good United
Management LimitedZ % &8
ERITRAEIRT - BEARNS
ZER=ZE-ZFXA=+AHA

A
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. MBATIHTE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AABRR-ZBE-ZBERNA=ZTHZEENH
as at 30 June 2010 are as follows: BATHBOT :

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation of issued and to the Company
and operations  paid-up share ARARREGREE AL
Name TR LR BRTR Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ EEBY ARRHER =4 5f TEEH
Good United Management British Virgin Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands Uss1 RELZR
ABRLAHE 1EnEBR
Sea Marvel Limited British Virgin Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
Islands Uss1 REER
ABELRS 1ETEER
Cosmos Will Limited Brifish Virgin Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
Islands Uss1 RELRK
AREZHE 1EREER
Top Entrepreneur British Virgin Ordinary 75% - Investment holding
Profits Limited Islands US$200 RELZR
ABRLEE 2002 EBR
B & B Natural Products British Virgin Ordinary - 75% Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands US$1 REZR
ABELEHE 1EREER
Rapid Progress Profits British Virgin Ordinary - 56.25% Investment holding
Limited Islands Uss8 RELRK
ARELHE BETEBR
Hsing Long Trading Singapore Ordinary - 70.31% Distribution of natural
Co. Pfe. ltd. gl $GD100,000 supplementary
100,000%f 0% 70 foods and mineral
EER materials

PERABRR R REMHH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - 2. MBASIHIE &
continued

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable

incorporation of issued and to the Company

and operations  paid-up share ARAEEREEAL
Name TR LR BRTR Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ EEBY BRRAEE B B TEEH
CNPC Huayou Cu Energy People’s Republic Registered - 70% Investment holding

Investment Co., Limited of China capital of RELR

ERPERRERERERALT (*PRC") RMB100,000,000

FEARLA AR

(@)  AR%100,000000%

Casdon Management Brifish Virgin Ordinary - 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands Uss1 REZR
ABEZHE 1ZREBR
Sharp Keen Investments British Virgin Ordinary - 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands Uss1 REER
ERELHE 1ZnEBR
Wealth Concept Holdings British Virgin Ordinary - 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands Us$1 REER
ABELRS 1EREER
The Shrine of Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% Trading, retailing and
Limited D HKS1 wholeselling
BAWBRAR 1BREER €5 ZERHEH
Start Well Corporation Limited Hong Kong OrdinaryHK$2 - 100% Investment holding
AEEXERAT B 2B EBR REER
Hong Kong Life Group Holdings ~ Hong Kong OrdinaryHK$2 - 100% Investment holding
Limited i 2EnEBR REER

EREDEMERBRAA

(Formerly known as Fully
Concept Limited
EIRBRAR)

(FBARERAR)
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - 2. MBASIHE &
continued

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity attributable
incorporation of issued and to the Company
and operations  paid-up share ARAEEREEAL
Name TR LR BRTR Direct Indirect Principal activities
R EENE BRROER B G TEEK
Merit Capital Investment Hong Kong OrdinaryHK$2 - 100% Investment holding
Limited ¥ 2BnEBR REZR
BRAZERLA
Allied Effort Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 95% Property development,
ERERAR £ HK$100 management, frading,
1008 ERR leasing, consultancy
NEEE EE 28
RE - BRERS
Loyal Truth Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 90% Properties investment
BEEXERAA i 1008 T &R NERE
Blissful Year Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 90% Properties investment
) 1008 T & &R NERE
Ascent Hill Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% Provision of management
i HK$200,000 services
200,000t ERR REEERH
Hong Kong Life Group Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
EED 1ZREER REER
882HK Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 90% Properties investment
£ 1008 & BR NERE
Cheerful Year Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 90% Properties investment

B 1008 EBR NERE
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES -

continued

Name
28

Civic Limited

Good Day Limited

Hero Limited

Happy Dragon Limited

Fully Kingdom Limited

Rich Wealthy Limited

HK 126 Limited

Place of
incorporation
and operations
R IR
EENE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up share
BETR
BRRAEE

Ordinary HK$198
198 T EBR

Ordinary HK$100
1008 T EBR

Ordinary HK$100
100 T EBR

Ordinary HK$100
1008 T EBR

Ordinary HK$100
100 T EBR

Ordinary HK$100
1008 T EBR

Ordinary HK$199
1998 T EBR

32. B A B FHE

Percentage of

equity attributable
to the Company
RARBERERAL
Direct Indirect
EE G
- 89.9%
- 90%
- 90%
- 90%
- 90%
- 90%
- 89.45%

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

4=

— =

Principal activities
TEEH

Properties investment

NERE

Properties investment

NERE

Properties investment

NERE

Properties investment

NERE

Properties investment

NERE

Properties investment

NERE

Properties investment

RE MR
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33. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 33. iR H=E 188
ENTITIES

The Group had interests in the following significant R-ZZEZENFtA—BZELERH  *&
jointly controlled entities from 1 July 2009 to date of BRTHEEAFEHERHEEES
disposal:

Proportion of
nominal value
of registered

Form of Place of capital held
business establishment Class of by the Group
Name structure and operations capital  AEEHEEFM Principal activities
28 FRRBER  HUREERE X8R EXEEZLA  FEXER
%
Changde Huayou Sino-foreign PRC Registered 48.33% Development and
Gas Co., Limited equity joint H T management of
BEERME venture natural gas pipelines
BRAF FHEERT and distribution
facilities in PRC
ETEREREERAR
BERDHRIE
Hunan Huayou Natural Sino-foreign PRC Registered 33% Construction and
Gas Transportation and equity joint F i development of
Distribution Company venture natural gas pipeline
Limited HAEERT and related
HEZARARBE consultation
BRERAR services
AERFHRRAREE

REBERRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

33. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 33. R FEEfliSa>its -5

ENTITIES - continued

Note:

The Group holds 48.33% of the issued capital of Changde
Joint Venture and 33% of the issued capital of Hunan
Joint Venture. Pursuant to the shareholder's agreement in
relation to the acquisition of Changde Joint Venture and
Hunan Joint Venture, each shareholder has a veto right
relating to certain financial and operating decisions, and is
therefore considered as having joint control over Changde
Joint Venture and Hunan Joint Venture.

The following amounts represent the Group’s proportionate
share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
of the jointly controlled entities and are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated income statement as a result of proportionate

consolidation:

Current assets REEE

Current liabilities RBAE

e

FAEEREEESE AR48.33% 2B BITRA
RHEEEQABRZERITRE - REFHEK
BEEAEQARARNEEE AR ZRRmE
ERRABOMBREBERREEDTRE B
MERAEAEESLERAARPEEERRAZ
HEEHE -

THRERAEERGEHARZHERZEE
8 WERBEX  BEREHGREFTAGESH
BRERRESWER

2010 2009
—g-%% —2EAE
HK$’ 000 HKS" 000
TR TR

- 300,739

- 123,825
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

33. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 33. R FEEfliSa>its -5

34.

ENTITIES - continued

Note: - continued

Revenue L&
Expenses X
Profit (loss) for the period/year BA FRERRN (BEB)

* Disposal of equity interest in Changde joint venture
and Hunan Joint Venture were completed on 10
September 2009 and 11 September 2009 respectively.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 30 June 2010, the Group does not have
any banking facilities (2009: banking facilities
which consisted mainly of secured bank loans of
approximately HK$59,907,000, secured by certain
gas network of a jointly controlled entity and
unconditional irrecoverable corporate guarantees
from discontinued operations, and unsecured bank
loan of approximately HK$33,697,000).

MisE: —#&

1-7-2008

1-7-2009 To

To date 30-6-2009

of disposal* —EBEENE
—EEAEF tA—BZE
tA—BZE —EENE
HE BB ~A=+H
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHERT FHERT
18,323 106,803
(18.493) (103,187)
(170) 3,616

* HERESEQATIRNBEE AR ZRAE
BECONR-ZFZNFANATAR=E
ZERAFAAT-—HEM°

4. RITEREE

RZZ-ZFAA=Z+H AEELE
ERARTERAEE(ZZEZENF XA
ERIEXEBZRTEAFEZEZEGREN
59,907,000 T 2 B MRTERK - TI L
HEEHER2E TRRAKURERG
RATHE 2 A RERERT ZHELH
33,697,0008 itz BIKFRITER) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments in respect of rented

premises under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

Continuing operations
Within one year
In the second fto fifth

years inclusive

Discontinued operations

Within one year

In the second to fifth years
inclusive

Over five years

= PA ES
—ER®
E-FERDE
(BEERME)

BRIEER
—FR
B_FEERF
(BEBERWMF)
BEFEUE

Operating lease payments represent rental payable

by the Group for certain of its office properties from

continuing operations.

35.

EEHOHRE

FEREEAREAN

RE MR

REZZ-ZFXRAZ+H AKERHEE
DERBIAIZHEECLERNEERT M
BRI 2 KRR BKEEERRARE !

2010 2009
—g-%% —EThE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHT
531 31

609 -
1,140 31

- 10

- 14

- 3

- 27

REHOREEAEERESALEER
RETHAEMERS z2HEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS - 5. FEHHRH-E
continued
The Group as lessor XEEEBHBAAN
As at 30 June 2010, the Group had contracted with RZE—ZFRA=1+H AKERHEE
tenants for the following minimum lease payments MERBEATFHSEHLOABERTHIE
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect BRIz AREEBASHEHEHBAEFZ2EY

of rented premises which fall due as follows:

2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZEZhEF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT FHExT
Discontinued operations CHRILER
Within one year —FR - 520
In the second to fifth years B_FEERF
inclusive - 1,631
Over five years BEEUE - 2,106
- 4,257
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 2 to 10 HARBZRETHERAMEETF -
years.
The Group did not have any lease arrangements for AEETERBFESCEERITAEMHEE

continuing operations. ZH e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B8R MiaE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BEXR&RIE
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEHLF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FHERT FHExT
Capital expenditure in respect FER—EMRBARRE
of the investment in a ZEREBRTH
subsidiary authorized but not EAREX
contracted for 44,667 44,137
Capital expenditure in respect ERRRPWEZELRAX
of the properties under
development 23,052 -
Capital expenditure in respect FEEEARER2E—
of sole distribution right of the D ERAX
paper-offering business 414 -
68,133 44,137
37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 37.XEHFREXRS

38.

39.

(a) During the year, the Group incurred finance costs
on convertible bonds and unsecured promissory
note of approximately HK$23,835,000 (2009:
approximately HK$34,770,000).

(b) During the year, the Group capitalized borrowings
of approximately HK$38,750,000 by subscription of

shares on 16 December 2009.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 June 2010, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2009: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

With the introduction of Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) in December 2000 in
Hong Kong, the Group has arranged its employees
in Hong Kong to join the MPF Scheme. The
retirement benefits scheme contributions charged
to the consolidated income statement represents
confributions payable to the MPF Scheme by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

38.

39.

() R AEEEETRRESREK
WANR 2B E B A 423,835,000
BT (ZEENF : £934,770,000%
JT) °

FR-AEER-ZZAF+ZA
TAREBRBEROZEASY
38,750,000 B T 2 EEBAEEA -

HAER

R-ZZE-Z2FXA=Z+H AEELEE
AERSIAREE(ZEENF 1 &) -

iR ¥k 48 FI 51 2

BEER-_ZEETF+ _RAERAEGMELR
B (MaREAE D% AEECLZH
HERBEESMBESE - RESKE
KPR ZBRABRFTAERERAEBRR
BESHERUTAZLEMADBES
B 2 LR -

®)
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39.

40.

41.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME -
continued

The total costs charged to the consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$44,000 (2009:
approximately HK$34,000) represent contributions
payable to the MPF Scheme in respect of the current
accounting period.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries that
operated in the People’s Republic of China and
Singapore are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government and Central Provident Fund Scheme,
respectively. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute pension, based on a certain percentage
of their payroll costs, to the pension schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Group is obliged to make lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances
to certain employees who have completed at least
five years of service with the Group. The amount
payable is dependent on the employee’s final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group'’s retirement plan that are
atftributable to conftributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations.

No significant provision for long service payments
was made on 30 June 2070 (2009: Nil).

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 13 October 2004, the Company adopted a share
award scheme for employees and consultants,
excluding Executive Directors and chief executives,
of the Group for the purpose of recognizing the
confributions of certain employees and consultants
of the Group to the growth of the Group, by
rewarding them with opportunities to obtain an
ownership interest in the Company and to further
motivate them and give an incentive to these
persons to continue to contribute fo the Group’s
long-term success and prosperity. No shares were
granted under the share award scheme since its
adoption on 13 October 2004 and up to the date of
this report.

39.

40.

41.

BARBEAGE-&

REEWRERINR 2R AN H44,0005E
T (ZEZNE : 34,0008 7T) » BAE
TR AR BB EAR MR-

REERPEARAME R INFEL 2
MEBARFEFEZES  ADHSHEH
FHHMAEE s PREMRGERPROE
i3 - ZEMBARNEAREETEZS
TESLEERATHBTERE - AEH
REZBRARBRFTEZE—FT  BBREZ
IR EHRE -

RUIRS & w

RIEFBERK - AEBEARETHER
EAEERBREFRALZETESR
BREOREXN-—FRE ENSERT
BEZERFNEFEME  YERER
BASERAKSHAZEMREANEE MR
2R FAEESELZWENEGEE
ML ETERE -

R-ZZE-Z2FXA=Z+H AEELEE
HEFEARBBRBEBE (ZZTAE:
) -

R 153 88 By 51 &1

AARR-EENF+AT=ZARMN—E
AXEEEERER (TEEHITESR
TETRAB)MERZRMEBFE B
ERBEFAEEBREHEMZAEES
TRERER BZEATEREEESL
NERE WE-PHBRBBWEEE
AEAEEZRENMRERFELHER - A
“EZNET AT =ARMARGEBE
URREEARBEAH - MARBHRHE
fARRAD °

RE MR
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

() Compensation of Directors and key
management personnel

EHIE A
E B

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

(b) Balances with related parties

Amount due from a
shareholder of the Company
(included in other
receivables)

Unsecured promissory note
due to a shareholder of the
Company (principal amount)

Convertible bonds held by a
shareholder of the Company TR E&ES (KA&5)
(principal amount)

Notes:

(i)  Red Rabbit Capital Limited ("Red Rabbit”) was a
former director of Casdon.

(i) As at 30 June 2010, Red Rabbit was a
shareholder of the Company (Refer the note
of "Long Position of the Company” in Directors’
Report on page 34).

(i) The residual amount of approximately
HK$184,000 was an operating expenses paid for
Red Rabbit by Casdon before 27 May 2010.

(iv) As at 30 June 2010, the balance of unsecured
promissory note and convertible bonds
at principal amount of approximately
HK$126,000,000 and HK$520,000,000 was due to
and held by Red Rabbit, respectively.

BRAQXT-ERERZ
IR (FF A E b FE W RR)

BNFARA-—ERE
ZEERENE (REH)

ARB-—BRREFAZ

Aptus Holdings Limited
MEZRERA A

42. FHEANEX S

(@) EERIBERASZHH

2010 2009
= i —EThF
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
FTERT FTBRT
2,759 1.917
23 25
2,782 1,942

(o) EEIEAL &8
2010 2009
—E-%F —EThF
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
TET TigT
184 -
126,000 -
520,000 -

Bt -

®

(i)

(iiiy

v

REEXEBERARD(THFR] B
CasdonZ Al E S °

RZE-ZFEXA=1+AH KFrd
RATRZBRR (FLHESEREDP
[RAARQDT WG 252 IHE (ER
$E34H)) ©

Fer > S 5EN184,0008 T A
CosdonR=—Z—ZFHA-++t
BAiAFR RS ZEERSX -

R-ZZE-—ZFEXA=+H0 BN
FhRGIYBAFREE 2 EIE R
BARAERTBRBREZZA S8
35 5% 5126,000,000% T &
520,000,00058 7T °

RE MR
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43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF A3. R AT ZBBEMBERER
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of Financial Position (0) MBRRAR
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FHET FET
Property, plant and NE- - BE
equipment REHE 2 9
Interests in subsidiaries RMBAR zER 1,062,992 51,377
Investment in jointly AHEZEFERZRE
controlled entities - 210,277
Trade and other receivables  FEURBRFR R H UL TR 1B
and prepayments PO SEENE S 194 475
Bank balances and cash IRITHEEFERRE 3,532 602
Trade payables, accrued ERER
liabilities and EitEER
other payables HA A RRIE (418) (7.451)
Borrowings =Rt (87.205) (36,145)
Convertible bonds R ES (252,672) (303,244)
Net assets (liabilities) EE (868 F8 726,425 (84,100)
33,837 17,628
Reserves # & 692,588 (101,728)

Total equity AR 726,425 (84,100)
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43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY - continued

(b) Reserve of the Company

A1 July 2008

Shares issued on exercise
of options

Total comprehensive
loss for the year

At 30 June 2009
and 1 July 2009

Redemption of convertible
bonds reserve

Issue of convertible bonds

Shares issued on exercise
of options

Placing of shares

Subscription of shares

Issue of shares on conversion

of convertible bonds

Total comprehensive
income for the year

At 30 June 2010

R-FENELA-H

REREENE
Mk

FEERE
FRAE

REFEAEAAZTE
E-2EAFLA-H

BETER
xR

RTURRES

REREENRE
gk

BERD

B2

RTARESER
[k v

AEERE
WELE

Aptus Holdings Limited

MEERER

NIE]

RE MR

A3. XAF ZMIEM B EHBR -

==
&

(b) EATIHEE

Refained

Convertible profits

Share Share bonds Capital - (Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses) Total

iR REEF
B R E5RE Ex@E  (RHER) @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
Tién TR TEn Tén Tén TEn
17,444 95,061 10,712 15,826 (183,266) (44,233)
184 1,671 - - 1,855
- - - (41,722) @722
17,628 96,722 10,712 15,826 (224,988) (84,100)

- (10,712) - 10,712
- 440,085 - - 440,085
187 1,757 - - 1,944
1,600 37,400 - - 39,000
1,222 37,428 - - 38,650
13,200 316,800 (170,202) - - 159,798
- - 131,048 131,048
33,837 490,107 269,883 15,826 (83,228) 726,425
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44,

45,

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 August 2010, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement with a subscriber,
whereby the Company agreed to allot and issue
74,100,000 subscription shares at a price of HK$0.17
per subscription share to the subscriber. The net
proceeds from the subscription were approximately
HK$12.59 million. The subscription was completed on
23 August 2010.

Since 1 July 2010 and up to the date of the annual
report, a total of 480,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued as a result of
conversion of convertible bonds.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS1 (revised
2007), Presentation of financial statements and
HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year’'s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first
fime in 2010. Further details of these developments
are disclosed in notfe 2.

44,

45.

SHBREREHE

RZZE-ZFNA+AB AARE—F
RBATIZBHE Bt XA7EE
RERABERM0.17EBTZEREARBEA
Bt 2% & 3 1774,100,0008 R B 4 © 288
BIEZ B RNIEFEN H12,590,000%
ToRBEEHER-_ZE-—ZFNAZ+=
HSEMR °

B-Z2-Z5tA-HEZELXAFHAHA
LHE  AARCEATRRESBRRM
fit 2% & 3 47 & $£480,000,000/% & % [ &
0.01BRTZEBR -

A s

HREASBEFERNEIR (ZEELEF
B HBHRR2 2 IREBUBRE
ERAFESRIEESE | ETHREFE
RAR UNERFEZ2NATRALAR
TE-ZRERERRECEBERHEERS
H-BRALEEH ZFBRME2NE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY HEERBRE
RESULTS £
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=tHLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ZE-BF ZEZEEAF ZBEN\F ZEEZtF CZEZERE
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TR TR TER TR TR

Revenue s 3,780 125,095 105,355 57,655 30,820
Cost of sales HERA (3763)  (98975)  (86.969)  (54.140)  (29.963)
Gross profit el 17 26,120 18,386 3,515 857
Other revenue Hilz 1,207 1,140 1,129 310 64
Selling and distribution costs &R A KA - - (13,598) (3.254) (420)
Administrative expenses THX (38.148) (53,846) (25,884) (86,810) (40,085)
Finance costs ME KA (24,969) (42,438) (37.485) (24,396) (1.438)
Loss on deemed RIEHE-R

disposal of a subsidiary MEARZEE - - %) - -
Loss on disposal of HE-BBE AR ZER

an associate - ) - - -
Profit from discontinued BRIEER A

operations 190,979 - - - -
Share of result of an associate G — B E A R EE - 124 (40) - -
Profit (loss) before taxation ~ BRBIATRA (§i48) 129,086 (68907)  (57.499)  (110,635)  (41,022)
Income tax FaH - (1.485) 412 (464) (14)
Profit (loss) for the year REERA () 129,086 (70.392)  (57.087)  (111.099)  (41,036)




Aptus Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010
MiEERAERRQA —ZEZ T FF R
> 32|
FINANCIAL SUMMARY BiiERMEE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAERE
At 30 June
RXA=1H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-2F ZE2ENE ZEENF ZBELE CZEERE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
THERT TER TER TER FEx
Total assets BEE 1,079,773 387,224 408,586 379,658 76,985
Total liabilities BaE (375.041)  (473,953)  (426,297)  (371,854)  (33.488)
704,732 (86.729)  (17.711) 7,804 43,497
Equity attributable to equity AABIRERE AELES
holders of the Company 687,094 (101,784) (32,989) (7.508) 29,424
Non-controlling inferests FERER 17,638 15,055 15,278 15,312 14,073
704,732 (86,729) 17,711) 7,804 43,497
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